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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PFC
Device Inc. (the “Company”), collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company and
its subsidiaries. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
EEmE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the audited financial results of the Group for the year
2017.

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the design, assembly, and
sales of power discrete semiconductors under its own brand.
Its principal applications and core segments include (1) power
supply and adapters for TV, PC, laptop, etc. (2) chargers for
mobile phone, tablet, portable electronics, etc. (3) industrial and
automotive applications.

The Group has achieved stable growth in 2017. During this
period, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$27.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing an
increase of 21% when compared to the previous year of US$22.8
million. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was US$0.6
million for 2017 as compared to a loss of US$0.1 million for 2016.

The Group continues to expand its market share in 2017 with
growth coming from the consumer market including power supply,
adapters, and chargers for TV, PC, laptop, and mobile phone in
China and Taiwan.

The Group has expanded its business into electric vehicle (EV)
applications with several product approval from key electrical
vehicle (EV) system suppliers.

2018 will be a challenging year as production costs continue to
rise whereas average selling price are under pressure due to

intense competition from competitors in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), and other regions.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude
to our staff, and the support from all of our shareholders and
stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the design, assembly, and
sales of its power discrete semiconductors under its own brand.

The Group’s business exhibited stable growth when compared
to the previous year and is in line with its established business
strategy. During the year, the Group continued to focus its
efforts to penetrate new customers and markets, by expanding
into electric vehicle (EV) application with several product
approval from key electrical vehicle (EV) system suppliers. As a
result of successful research and development, the Group has
significantly expanded the product offering of both MOSFET
and Schottky with the introduction of over 80 new products
of Synchronous MOSFET and a new line of TO-263 Schottky
products.

To meet customers’ growing demand, the Group has acquired
additional assembly equipment and machineries amounting
to US$1.7 million to increase the production capacity and
strengthen the Group’s engineering and testing capability.

In addition to its manufacturing business, the Group engage in
the trading of raw materials mainly Epi Wafer (“EPI”). The Group
purchases EPI, the semiconductor raw material being the core
raw material for the production of fabricated wafer. The Group
sells some of its EPI to a foundry company in the PRC from
which the Group purchased fabricated wafers in return. During
the year, the Group was able to maintain stable supply of EPI as
compared with 2016, so the revenue from raw material trading
remains nearly the same.

OUTLOOK

The Group is facing tight supply of EPI and foundry capacity in
2018 due to strong global demand for semi-conductor materials.
Such demand and supply imbalance is forecasted into 2019.
As such, the Group’s operation growth may be limited by the
allocation of EPI and foundry capacities of these suppliers, hence
it is difficult for the Company to continue its strategy of expanding
its back-end assembly operation. The Group has slowed down its
assembly factory expansion and will evaluate other cost effective
solutions including outsourcing its assembly requirements. Due
to our small assembly production scale, outsourcing may be
more cost effective and also provide feasibility to quickly expand
production when needed and enable the Company to focus
on high value-added activities on the product chain including
research and development activities.

Looking forward, the Directors consider the future opportunities
and challenges which the Group faces will be affected by (1)
the expanding number of competitors in the PRC and other
regions resulting in price competition, (2) tight supply from EPI
and foundry suppliers, and (3) the rising manufacturing costs.
The Directors view that (1) expanding into tier-1 customers,
(2) reducing our overall cost base, (3) extending the products
portfolio, and (4) diversifying our industrial applications for the
upcoming year.

For key performance indicators of the Group, please refer to the
section of “Financial Review” below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EE B LT (&)

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The table below sets out an analysis by comparing the business
objectives of the Group as set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 September 2016 (the “Prospectus”) with the
Group’s achievement of these objectives for the year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017. These business objectives
are in place with a view to generating long-term value to the
Group and the shareholders.

Business Objectives

1. To increase the production capability of the Group’s power
discrete semiconductors
— In 2017, the Group has acquired more machineries to
enhance the production lines for the production of our
packaging line such that it is in line with its growth.

2. To continue research and development effort

— The Group’s R&D team continued to introduce
technologically advanced products and diversify the
Group’s presence in industries that the Group consider
to have high potential. The Group has released
over 80 new products of Synchronous MOSFET to
compliment its product portfolio in the power supply
market.

3. To expand its distribution network
—  We have aligned 2 new distributors in PRC to expand
our distribution network and customer reach. The new
distributors will facilitate our extended presence in the
industrial, automotive and solar market.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Company’s listing on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 7 October 2016 (“the Listing”) (after
deducting the underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted
to approximately HK$57.4 million (equivalent to approximately
US$7.4 million). The future plans and the planned use of
proceeds as stated in the Prospectus were based on the
Group’s best estimate on the future market condition during the
preparation of the Prospectus, while the proceeds have been
applied taking into consideration the actual business and market
development.

The Group had utilised approximately US$2.7 million, from the
net proceeds as at 31 December 2017. The unused net proceeds
have been placed as interest bearing deposits with a licensed
bank in Hong Kong and is intended to be applied in the manner
consistent with the proposed allocations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties in implementing the Group’s
business strategies include the following:

1.

Customer base

Our five largest customers accounted for a significant
portion of our revenue. If any of the key customer reduces,
delays or cancels its orders to the Group, our profit level
may be adversely affected.

Supply of materials

We are dependent on the continuous supply of EPI and
wafer foundry capacilities from a few suppliers. Any
shortage or delay in the supply of the necessary materials
and foundry capacilities, or any significant change in these
prices in which the Group may not be able to shift the
costs to its customers, resulting in adverse impact on our
business and results of operation.

Research and development

The Group maintains its own research and development
team, primarily focusing on improvement of product
performance, new product models and technology
improvement. Failure to launch the development of new
products to the market to meet customers’ demand may
result in adverse impact on the Group competitive edge.

Packaging production capacity

The Group relies on stable operation of its production
facilities and adequate labour force for production.
Any equipment failure, industrial accidents and other
catastrophic events, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.

In addressing these risks and uncertainties, the Group continues
to implement its strategies to expand its products portfolio
and strives to explore potential customers. The Group makes
great effort to establish good relationship with our suppliers.
The production facilities of the Group are subject to regular
inspection, maintenance and part replacement, as well as
appropriate training is provided to all operating and administrative
staff on safety matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EE B LT (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and Operating Results

Revenue from the Group’s operations for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately US$27.6 million,
representing a growth of approximately US$4.8 million or 21%
compared to US$22.8 million for 2016. Such increase was
primarily attributable to the increase in sales volume of the
Group’s Schottky products.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2017
was 22.2%, representing a decrease of 6.4 percentage points
compared to 28.6% for 2016. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to declined average selling price of power
discrete semiconductors products and increased manufacturing
costs.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was US$0.6 million, as compared with
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of US$0.1
million for 2016. The change from loss to profit was mainly
attributable to the various factors. Besides the decrease in gross
profit margin mentioned above, such factors also include (i) no
occurrence in 2017 of one-off listing expenses of US$1.4 million
incurred for 2016; (ii) increase in other income in the current
year; and (iii) increase in administrative expenses primarily
due to additional headcount and increase in staff costs and
equity-settled share-based payment expenses incurred for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The Directors are of the view that the substantial improvement
in profit attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due
to non-recurring other income of US$0.4 million in 2017 and
the non-recurring listing expenses of US$1.4 million in 2016.
Excluding these items in the respective years, the attributable
profit decrease by 85%.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group was able to maintain a sound financial position with its
financial resources and liquidity position consistently monitored
and put in place in a healthy state throughout the period under
review. Given the current economic situation, the Group would
constantly re-evaluate its operational and investment status with
a view to improving its cash flow and minimising its financial
risks.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total cash and
bank balances of approximately US$5.6 million which is mainly
denominated in United States dollars (2016: US$11.2 million
which was mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The banking facilities of the Group are bearing interest at floating
interest rates. Interest coverage of the Group as at 31 December
2017, calculated as operating profit divided by total interest
expenses net of interest income, stood at 80 times (31 December
2016: 5 times).

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 7 October 2016. There has been no
change in the Company'’s capital structure since then. The capital
structure of the Group comprises of ordinary shares and bank
borrowings.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in United States
dollars, Taiwan dollars and Renminbi. It is the Group’s treasury
policy to closely monitor its foreign exchange position and to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group. During the year, the Group did
not engage in any hedging activities.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the year. The Group
strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

Gearing Ratio

The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio to be in line
with expected changes in economic and financial conditions,
expressed as a percentage of total bank borrowings net of cash
and bank balances to total equity of the Group. The gearing ratio
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was nil (31 December
2016: nil) as the Group had net cash balances at the respective
year end.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total capital
commitments of approximately US$0.5 million (2016: US$0.1
million) for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Capital Expenditure

The Group had capital expenditures totalling US$1.9 million
during the year (2016: US$1.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EE B LT (&)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2016: nil).

Segment Information

Segment Information for the Group is presented as disclosed on
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Investments/Material Acquisitions and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had not
made any significant investments or material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 184 employees (2016:
176). The Group’s total employee benefit expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately US$4.8
million (2016: US$3.8 million). The pay levels of these employees
are commensurate with their responsibilities, performance and
market condition. In addition, share option schemes are put in
place as a longer term incentive to align interests of employees to
those of shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David (/&R #), aged 53, Chartered
Financial Analyst, joined the Group in 2006 and was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 21 March 2016.
Mr. Chow received his Bachelor degree of Applied Science in
Computer Engineering and his Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Waterloo and York
University, Canada. He has previously had related position
at First Marathon Securities Limited in Canada, Asian Capital
Partners, and HSBC Private Equity (Asia) Limited in the
corporate finance and investment management field. He is also
a director of all subsidiaries of the Group and the Deputy Chief
Executive of Shell Electric Holdings Limited.

Mr. Hong James Man-fai (it X &), aged 45, was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 21 March 2016.
Mr. Hong is the chief executive officer of the Group and primarily
responsible for the overall management and operations and the
implementation of the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Hong
is also a director of a number of the subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hong obtained a Bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science from University of California, Berkeley,
USA and a Master of Business Administration from University
of Southern California, USA. Mr. Hong has more than 18 years
of experience in the manufacturing and retail of semiconductor
products with extensive knowledge in business development of
semiconductor product. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hong was
employed by Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., Pittiglio Rabin Todd
& McGrath, APD Semiconductor, Inc., Diodes Incorporated, and
Skyworks Solutions, Inc.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy (§EI &), aged 64, was appointed as a
Director of the Company on 2 March 2016 and was re-designated
as a non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board of
the Company on 19 September 2016. Mr. Yung is primarily
responsible for the strategic direction and overall management
of the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Yung is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Yung is also a director of a number of the subsidiaries of the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EELSREBEABBRERNE (B

Mr. Yung received a bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering
from University of Washington and a master degree in Industrial
Engineering from Stanford University. Mr. Yung has over 40
years of experience in managing manufacturing, retailing,
transportation, semi-conductor, computer hardware and software
business in China, Hong Kong and US. Prior to founding the
Group, Mr. Yung had been the executive director of Shell Electric
Mfg. (Holdings) Co. Ltd. from 1973 to 2010, now known as
China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Ltd., which shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0081). Since 10 February 2010, Mr. Yung became
a non-executive director and vice chairman of that company.
Mr. Yung has been the chairman and the chief executive of
Shell Electric Holdings Limited since 2009. Mr. Yung is currently
the Permanent Honorary President of Friends of Hong Kong
Association Ltd., the Honorary President of Shun Tak Fraternal
Association, a member of Senior Police Call Central Advisory
Board and was awarded the Honorary Citizen of the City of
Guangzhou and the Honorary Citizen of the City of Foshan.

Mr. Tang Che Yin (BB ), aged 62, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 21 March 2016 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 19 September 2016.
Mr. Tang is primarily responsible for assisting the chairman in
the overall management of the strategic planning of the Group
and overseeing the human resource and operation of the Group’s
China manufacturing operation. Mr. Tang is also a director of
Guangdong PFC Device Limited.

Mr. Tang obtained his Master degree of Computer Science from
the University of Manchester of the United Kingdom, United
Kingdom, in December 1980 and his Master degree of Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Hong Kong, in December 1987. He obtained the qualification
of a Chartered Engineer and also membership of the Council
of Engineer in the United Kingdom in February 1987. He also
obtained the qualification of a Chartered Electrical Engineer in
March 1991 and the membership of the Institution of Electrical
Engineers in April 1986.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam, Peter (¥ & }), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 19
September 2016. He is also a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam received a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering
from Lehigh University and a Master degree in Construction
Management from Stanford University. He is the President
of Lam Construction Group Limited. He has over 30 years of
experience in construction, project management and real estate
development.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence ($ X £l), aged 69, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 19 September 2016. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company. He is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has been in
public practice for over 46 years and is now a partner of Tang
and Fok, certified public accountants. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Safety Godown Company Limited (stock
number 237) and Pak Fah Yeow International Limited (stock
number 239), both listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited.

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip (S81=#), aged 68, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 19
September 2016. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Fan is also an
independent non-executive director of the following Hong Kong
listed public companies, namely China Everbright International
Ltd., Hysan Development Company Limited, First Pacific
Company Limited, China Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited.
He was also formerly an independent non-executive director
of Guolian Securities Co., Ltd, a Hong Kong listed company
until July 2016, and an independent director of Goodman, an
Australian listed company, until November 2017.

Senior management

Mr. Kuo Hung Hsin (2755%), aged 64, is the president of PFC
Device Corporation (Taiwan Branch) (the “PFC Device (TW)”). He
joined the Group on 2 July 2007 and he is primarily responsible
for the implementation of strategic direction of the Group, product
roadmap definition, strategic marketing and planning. Mr. Kuo
has over 31 years of experience in the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Kuo obtained a Bachelor degree of Chemical Engineering
from Tamkang University, Taiwan, an Executive Master degree of
Business Administration degree from National Taipei University,
Taiwan, and an Industry Research Master's degree of Science
on Embedded Systems Engineering from the Technology and
Science Institute of Northern Taiwan (now known as Taipei
City University of Science and Technology), Taiwan. Mr. Kuo
previously worked in Globe Industries Corporation, Lite-on
Semiconductor Corp and APD Semiconductor (Asia) Inc.

Mr. LIU, HSIN-HSIEN (2l{ &), aged 48, is the sales vice
president of PFC Device Corporation (Taiwan Branch) (the “PFC
Device (TW)”). He joined the Group on 2 November 2014 and he
is primarily responsible for the customer development and sales
management.

Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor degree of Material Engineering
from National Taipei University of Technology, Taiwan. Mr. Liu
has over 21 years of experience in the semiconductor industry.
Mr. Liu previously worked in Avnet Asia Pte Ltd Taiwan Branch
(Singapore), Arrow Electronics, KC Uppertech Co., Ltd., Immense
Advance Technology Corp., Diodes Incorporated., and Chip
Integration Technology Corporation.

—E—tEEH

EELSREBEABBRERE (8

RYBEE NThE RZBE-—R"FALAETH
ARZEEARLRABIFATES - WABEA
AERZEEEZEF - RELRBH ARSI
NEERSENBTEBESFHMOASEREE - /K
EHESAEB46TF RAMKBEER TSR
MEBREBA RELEBRKTAZ2EREAR
DA (RHASE :237) KRBT HBEBRARA R (R
RS 239) BYFHITES  MERAAHR/E
BERAXZMABERATDLETQTF -

BLBEE XTN B RZBE—X"FhAThH
AEZEEARADABILIHITES - FAEERLD
AFNEEEETEUREXZECNIEREZES
ZEE - BEENBUTEB LT AR ZBEILHE
HOTEE HPEXAEBRERLAAE - FEHEES
RAT) - B—AFERQAARFPERKIEEEE
BERERAT - BIEEEBBELERLATE (—H
EBLTAT) ZBAIHATEEEZE-_E— X
Ft AL KRB XFE LD AEGoodmanZ i&
VEEHEE-ZE—tH&+—HALk-

SREBAE

BEELEE A+ M BPFC Device
Corporation (B 5 2Aa)) ((Ege Tt (&&)]D)
BE - FRZZZLtELAZHEMALRER I
FEETHTAEBERME S RTEEREMEE
ﬁ‘ﬁ%@é%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ%ﬂ°§B§E€E§‘?&ﬁi@31$¥§§%
TTHELR -

BREBASHIASMGL IR LS - &3
By ELASRSOEERENBELEARANY
MR BHIGER ABELE N EAR) B
BHARRREETNREL B o PEEBEY
ERRURGA TERODERAT  AWAER
HERDARRBELHSHARTHTHRE
BERAT -

ZEEBERE B+ & APFC Device
Corporation (8&2 2 7]) ([EigEx (RE) ) 85
ERAE -FR-ZE-—NE+-BZHMALXE
CWEEEEHTAEECHERFHREE
EEITE-

BLERABRAVELNEAERNEMHIRE
T2M - AEERFERTENERE21F - 8
TEEBZBRHIMEBZENGED AR XE
EFROBERAT - EEROABERATE » XL
EXERRNVERAE ERMMZRHERAF
RUBMEROBRIF -

weETHERAT 13



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERWE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance. The Directors of the Company believe
that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the continuing growth of the Group and for
safeguarding and maximising shareholders’ interests.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
had complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules except for the following
deviations.

Under code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, an issuer should
have an internal audit function. The Company does not have
an internal audit function from 1 January 2017 and up to 2
April 2017. Taking into account the size and complexity of
the operations of the Group, the Company considers that the
existing organisation structure and the close supervision of the
management could provide sufficient risk management and
internal control for the Group. However, the Board has reviewed
the need to set up an internal audit function and an internal
auditor has been appointed on 3 April 2017. As such, the
Company had complied with code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code
from the same date.

It was noted that an independent non-executive director of
the Company, Mr. Lam, Peter, purchased a total of 1,000,000
shares in the Company on 7 November 2017. The transaction
took place within the black-out period under rule 5.56(a)(ii) of
the GEM Listing Rules without notification to the chairman of the
Company for acknowledgement prior to director’'s dealing. The
non-compliance was not deliberate and completely unintentional.
Such change of interest was subsequently submitted to the Stock
Exchange on 9 November 2017 immediately after it was brought
to the attention of the Company and the directors concerned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company (the “Board Committees”). Further
details of the Board Committees are set out below in this annual
report.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code and the duties of the Board in respect of the corporate
governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

The Board has performed the above duties during the year.

Composition of the Board

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises of seven Directors, including two executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED”). In particular, the
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David
Mr. Hong James Man-fai (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Che Yin

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam, Peter

Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EEERRE (8)

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board consisted of three INEDs during the
reporting period, with at least one INED processing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. During the reporting period, the number
of INEDs represents more than one-third of the Board as
required under the GEM Listing Rules. As such, there is a strong
independence element in the Board to provide independent
judgement.

In accordance with code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the
Company has entered into a letter of appointment with each of
the non-executive Directors and the INEDs under which each
INED is appointed for a specific term. The commencement
date of the appointment is 19 September 2016 and each of the
letter of appointment carries a fixed term of three years initially
commencing from 7 October 2016 (the “Listing Date”) unless
terminated by either party in accordance with the terms thereof.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each of the
INEDs to confirm their independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. In this connection, the Company has received
positive confirmations from all of the three INEDs. Based on the
confirmations received, the Company considers all the INEDs to
be independent under the GEM Listing Rules.

Saved as disclosed in the section “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there is no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board and senior
management.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy and the chief
executive officer (the “CEQ”) is Mr. Hong James Man-fai. The
roles of the Chairman and the CEO are clearly defined and
segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and
balances. The Chairman focuses on formulating business
strategies and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the
overall implementation of the Company’s strategies and the
co-ordination of overall business operations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, a total of five (including
four regular) board meetings and one annual general meeting
(the “AGM”) of the Company were held. The attendance record of
each Director at the board meeting is set out in the table below:

EEER®RE (B

EEERRRAE

RBE-ZE-—tF+-A=1+—-HILFE HE
TER(BENRER EEEERR—RAELT
BRAFAS(RRBEFARE]) - BESHFE
EEERMNTHEANT X

Number of
Attendance/ Attendance
number of the AGM
of board held on
meetings 9 May 2017
R=ZB—tF
EFANA
HERE, BITZERR
EEg BEXE
Name of Director EEHE BBARE ZHER
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David B RBUE & 5/5 1/1
Mr. Hong James Man-fai M E R E 5/5 11
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy FEELE 5/5 11
Mr. Tang Che Yin MWEALEE 515 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. Lam, Peter MEBHEE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence R EEE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB EE 4/5 1/1

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors in
respect of the shares of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”).
The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and
all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standard of dealings set out in the Code
of Conduct throughout the year ended 31 December 2017,
except the non-compliance matter stated in the section above
headed “Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code”.
The Company had paid due regard to this non-compliance
and in order to prevent the occurrence of similar incidents, the
management of the Company has immediately taken steps to
remind once again the directors of the dealing restriction during
the black-out period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EEERRE (8)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 under Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development including the attending seminars,
conferences or reading updates on relevant topics and had
provided the Company with records on their participation.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the Code, the Board has adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board. All Board appointments
are made on merits and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of aspects,
including (but not limited to) gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All committees have been provided with
sufficient resources and support from the Group to discharge
their duties. The relevant terms of reference of each of the
three committees can be found on the Group’s website (www.
pfc-device.com) and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 19 September
2016 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. It consists of two INEDs and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence,
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip and Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy. Mr. Leung
Man Chiu, Lawrence currently serves as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. He has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in accounting matters. The members of the Audit
Committee shall be appointed or removed by the Board. If any
member of the Audit Committee ceases to be a Director, he will
cease to be a member of the Audit Committee automatically.

The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules. In addition, the majority of the Audit Committee
members shall be INEDs.

With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others, the
following (for complete terms of reference, please refer to the
Group’s website at www.pfc-device.com or the website of the
Stock Exchange):

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Company’s external
auditor, and approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the Company’s external auditor;

2. to review and monitor the Company’s external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
report and review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

4. to discuss the risk management and internal control and
systems with the Company’s management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to maintain the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems;

5. to review the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group;

6. to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management in
respect of accounting records, financial accounts or systems
of control and management’s response;
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7. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management
letter; and

8. to report to the Board on that matters pursuant to the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee and consider other
topics as defined by the Board.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly
discharged its duties and responsibilities during the reporting
period and up to the date of this report.

The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least four
times a year. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Audit Committee meetings held four meetings and performed
duties including reviewing the Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the unaudited quarterly results for the
three months ended 31 March 2017 and nine months ended 30
September 2017 and the interim report for the six months ended
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30 June 2017. & o
The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee ERZEERENHFELHEMMMT
are summarized below:
Number of
Attendance/
number of
meetings
HEXE
SERH
Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence (Chairman) RSN EE (FE) 4/4
Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy SEHELE 4/4
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BI-BLEE 3/4

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 26 March 2018 and
reviewed with the management the Group’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017. It also reviewed the
internal control and risk management system and all connected
transactions entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries
during the financial year. The Audit Committee is of the opinion
that the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 comply with the applicable accounting
standards and the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
recommended to the Board for its consideration the same and
the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s external
independent auditor at the forthcoming AGM to be held on 14
May 2018.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 September
2016 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. It consists of two INEDs and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Lam,
Peter and Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy. Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

With reference to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include, among other things, the following (for the
complete terms of references, please refer to the Group’s website
at www.pfc-device.com or the website of the Stock Exchange):

1. to consult the chairman of the Board and/of chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

3. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

6. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

7. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

8. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

9. to ensure that no Director or any of their associates is
involved in deciding their own remuneration.
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The members of the Remuneration Committee should meet at
least once a year. During the year ended 31 December 2017, a
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held and has, inter
alia, reviewed the remuneration packages for individual executive
Directors and senior management and made recommendations to
the Board.

The emoluments payable to the Directors depend on their
respective contractual terms under the service contracts or the
appointment letters (as the case may be), and as recommended
by the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’
emoluments and remuneration payable to senior management
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 19 September
2016 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. It consists of one non-executive
Director and two INEDs, namely Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy,
Mr. Lam, Peter, Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip. Mr. Yung Kwok
Kee, Billy currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

With reference to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include, among other things, the following (for the
complete terms of reference, please refer to the Group’s website
at www.pfc-device.com or the website of the Stock Exchange):

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on proposed changes,
if any, to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of INEDs; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive.

The members of the Nomination Committee should meet at
least once a year. During the year ended 31 December 2017, a
meeting of the Nomination Committee was held and has, inter
alia, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and considered the
Directors to retire and re-appoint at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The amount of fees charged by the external auditor generally
depends on the scope and volume of the external auditor’s work
performed.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid
or payable to the external auditors of the Company in respect to
the audit services and non-audit services for the Group are as
follows:

EEER®RE (B

BB BN &

SNERBETE A — REUR R BT K T/ S8 E A
THE-

BE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HLEFE  x27
BEABRERFEARBENRIEINFALF
SNERHEMENT

Fees paid/payable for the
services rendered

et Axf
RKEA
2017 2016
—E—+5F —E-REF
UsS$’000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Annual audit FEHET 82 82
Other audit services (note) HAhFE IR (A1) — 202
Non-audit services IR TS
— for Listing -+t — 73
— Others —Hfth 43 26
125 383

Note: for acting as the reporting accountant of the Company for the Listing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial services and has appointed Ms. Lee Ka Man as
the company secretary of the Company on 9 November 2016.
Ms. Lee is not an employee of our Group and Mr. Chow Kai Chiu,
David, our executive Director, is the person whom Ms. Lee can
contact for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Lee has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David, an executive Director, is the
compliance officer of the Group. Please refer to the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” for his
biographical information.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s internal control system to
safeguard the assets of the Group and shareholder investments.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate
effective and efficient operation which in turn minimizes the risks
to which the Group is exposed. The system can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
losses.

The Board has periodically conducted a review of the
implemented system and procedures, covering financial,
operational and legal compliance controls and risk management
functions. The Directors consider that the Group has implemented
appropriate procedures for safeguarding the Group’s assets
against unauthorized use or misappropriation, maintaining proper
accounting records, segregation of duties and putting plans
and routines into execution with appropriate authority and in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Group did not have an internal audit function from 1 January
2017 and up to 2 April 2017. Taking into account the size
and complexity of the operations of the Group, the Company
considers that the existing organization structure and the close
supervision of the management could provide sufficient risk
management and internal control for the Group. However, the
Board has reviewed the need to set up an internal audit function
and an internal auditor has been appointed on 3 April 2017.
The internal auditor is responsible for identifying and monitoring
the Group’s risks and internal control issues. Results of audit
work, together with an assessment of the overall internal control
framework are reported to the Audit Committee as appropriate.

The Group adopts a risk management framework which
comprises the following processes:

- Identify significant risk in the Group’s operation environment
and evaluate the impact of those risks on the Group’s
business;

- Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

- The Group established an organizational structure with clear
operating and reporting procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority;

- Each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure whilst complying with
the Group’s policies, standards and guidelines;
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- Relevant executive Directors and senior management have
been delegated with specific accountability for monitoring
the performance of designated business operating units;

- A systematic review of the financial and business processes
in order to provide management assurance on the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal controls. Where weaknesses
are identified in the system of internal controls, management
will evaluate and take necessary measures to ensure that
improvements are implemented; and

- A Code of ethics is established and adhered to by all
employees to ensure high standards of conduct and ethical
values in all business practices.

The Board reviewed that the risk management and internal
control system adopted by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 and considered that it was effective.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With those guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group and are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards and principles,
applicable laws and disclosure provisions required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the view that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been prepared on this basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Statement of Company’s external auditor’'s responsibilities in
respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) is a forum in which the
Board and the shareholders communicate directly and exchange
views concerning the affairs and overall performance of the
Group, and its future developments, etc.

At the AGM, the Directors (including INEDs) are available to
attend to questions raised by the shareholders. The external
auditor of the Company is also invited to be present at the AGM
to address the queries of the shareholders concerning the audit
procedures and the independent auditor’s report.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 14 May
2018, the notice of which will be sent to the shareholders of the
Company in accordance with the Articles, the GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).
EGMs shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition, and such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If, within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves may convene a meeting in
accordance with the Articles and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Companies Law
(2015 Revision) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for
any business specified in such written requisition.

26 Annual Report 2017

BRERRE

BRBEFAS(RREFAE])RESSERR
IRASEER BEERERAKRBRREEEE
BRXBBENFE -

ES(BEBYFHTES) SHERREF KRS
EIERREM - A ABIIBELRBEAM TSR LE
RRBFAE  URERREBELEZFRE L
REBEMBRERIER o

ARAREERRBFAEER -2 -—N\FEA
THRET RSEEHKREMA - GEMETHR
BIRHMERAERERERTRTAQRARR -

R SR FE R
FERRERBMABRRERNAE

RIBAREeMF  ESSTHEARKRRER K
B(RREBNARE]) - RRENAETEAE-—F
FZENEZERAHPFEBETONALTAEER
BREAELBRENEHRA T 2 —HRRER
MFPUAER ZEERAUNEEAESEHLALD
ANNAWERE  UEREZSAMBRREH
REREEMERPHAIANEMNEE BAH
REARESEREMBEAART - HESFER
EREZR2IANREBHZAT - AIRHER
ALTHARBARNBITARKE - MAQXFREAR
RHERATENREZSRECARAEMELE
M BESERX -

BRERBRAEREZRENEF

REMUNFEEHRS 2R X (ZE-HFEBF
i) BRREB-BATHBBESNRERIN > LERK
NERRRIRRRASLREZRENERF - BRR
ARBENFENEFARRREIAE  LUE
HEEEBREBNEMSEE -

PFC Device Inc.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director, notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected and the biographical
details of that person as required under Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules for publication by the Company shall have been
lodged at the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong or at the registered office of the Company. The period for
lodgment of the notices required under this Article will commence
on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices to the Company may be given
will be at least 7 days.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at
www.pfc-device.com.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar (details of
which are set out in the section headed “Corporate Information”
of this annual report).

Should there be any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may send in written enquiries addressed to the head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
1/F., Shell Industrial Building, 12 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the Board and/or the
Company Secretary.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.

Investor Relations

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, and investors.
These include answering questions through the annual general
meeting, the publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website
at www.pfc-device.com and meetings with investors and
shareholders. New update of the Group’s business development
and operation are also available on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change
in the Company’s constitutional documents. The Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association are available on both
the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HELERRE

The Board of Directors of PFC Device Inc. (the “Company”)
present the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report) of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

This ESG Report has complied with the “Comply or Explain”
provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” contained in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

OUR VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

The Company believes that technology should make life better
for everyone, everywhere — and in so doing make a better world.
Sustainability inspires us to reinvent and build the future while
delivering value for our customers and company. This philosophy
shall apply to all our manufacturing sites, regional sales and
marketing offices worldwide, including:

. PFC Device (HK) Limited

. PFC Device Corporation, Taiwan Branch

. Guangdong PFC Device Limited
. Guangdong PFC Device Limited (Shenzhen Branch)

To continue its success in attracting successful capital, the
Group retains a loyal workforce and sustainable customer base
to protect and enhance its reputation as an ethical, profitable and
responsible brand.

Respect to stakeholders, employees and the environment
is a non-negotiable business principle of the Group and the
management is confident that the Group has appropriate systems
in place, not only to protect the brand and its businesses, but also
to provide long-term benefits to various stakeholders.

We provide high quality and safe products to our customers
around the world. Our policies include:

. Achieve customer satisfaction by improving product quality;

. Operate our system to fulfill customer requirements,
international laws and regulations as well as following
directives from management; and

. Comply with all relevant legislative requirements on
environmental and occupational health and safety.

Product quality and safety are ensured by accurate
manufacturing process and process controls. Regular product
inspections by both internal and external professional parties
also constitute an important part of the safety program. Reliability
tests are conducted to evaluate product risks. Our quality system
complies with the 1ISO9001:2008 and TS16949:2009 International
Standards.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

SOCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY POLICY AND
SUSTAINING EFFORTS

A)

B)

Employment

Our remuneration and benefits are reviewed on a yearly
basis through performance assessment and market
practice. Employees are entitled to mandatory provident
fund, medical insurance and a variety of paid holidays
including annual leave, sick leave and maternity leave.

Employees are important assets of the Group, we care
about their well-being, respect their personal traits, make
sure that all employees are subject to legislative protection
and have equal opportunity in their career path. Also, we
strive to increase their sense of belonging.

As at 31 December 2017, we had 184 staff. Our staff
demography is shown in the 2 charts below.

Z % Female

87 A
47%
B Male B
B Female &
& ¥ Male
97 A
53%

Employee Welfare

We value our employees, share great interests in their
well-beings, especially better living standards, more
comfortable working environment. We upgraded our
dormitories’ supplies and equipment, and hence improved
our employees’ living conditions.

In 2017, we improved the living conditions of our factory
employees in Shunde, China as follows:

. The number of occupants per room is reduced from
8 to 4. Not only with more space and better privacy,
each employee can have longer time in using the
common facilities inside the room;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE-HELERRE (E)

C)

D)

30

. Air conditioners are installed in each room to ensure
comfortable temperature during the hot season; and

. Centralized hot water system is replaced by water
heater inside each room, so that employees can adjust
the water heater according to their needs.

Discrimination

We are committed to maintain our workplace free from
discrimination and harassment of any form and provide
equal opportunities for all our employees at different
aspects, including recruitment, compensations and benefits,
training, promotions, and transfers. All employees are
assessed periodically based on their ability, performance
and contribution, irrespective of their nationalities, races,
religions, genders, ages, nationality status, disabilities or
any other forms of discrimination.

The Group has zero tolerance in any form of discrimination
or sexual harassment in our workplace. During the year,
we have no incident of violation and abuse reported from
our employees. There are also no complaints of any
discrimination or sexual harassment.

Health and Safety

We are committed to protect the health and safety of our
employees and the community and require our employees
to comply with all relevant occupational health and safety
regulation. We have implemented the following policies to
provide our employees with a safe and healthy working
environment:

. Established emergency measures in case of fire or
explosion;
. Regular rescue, fire and evacuation drills;

. Actively promoted environmental protection, health
and safety awareness of employees, and supported
development of environmental protection, health and
safety in the industry; and

. Ensure appropriate training is provided to all operating
and administrative staff on health and safety matters.
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E)

F)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Development and Training

We continued to provide comprehensive training to our
employees based on our “Training Policy” and other
related internal policies to promote learning culture inside
the Group. We provided diversified on-the-job training to
employees including holding orientation training, skills and
attitude trainings for new employees.

Orientation training allows new employees to familiarize
themselves with the corporate culture and the background
of the Company. Continual assessment is conducted to
keep track on the performance of employees. We also
encourage and subsidize our management staff and
professional personnel to attend external training.

During 2017, the total number of the Group’s employees
participating in training and the total number of training
hours completed by the Group’s employees are summarized
as follows:

E)

No. of participants
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Total no. of hours

SHEHEHE HEE
Male 2 47 3,503
Female peg 3 60 4,638
107 8,141

Labor Standards F) ZI%H8|

We respect human rights of our employees, especially
gender equality, and are strongly against the employment
of child labor and forced labor as stipulated in the Group’s
“Prohibition of Child Labor Recruitment and Remedies
Procedures”. The Group strictly complies with the PRC
Labor Law, “Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labor” and other relevant laws and regulations. Recruitment
guideline clearly stated that a person under 16 is not
allowed to work in the Group and zero tolerance to child
labor and forced labor. During 2017, the Group did not
identify any child labor and forced labor or violations against
the labor law.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE-HELERRE (E)

G)

H)

32

Supply Chain Management

A supplier management system is established for selecting
suppliers to ensure the quality of purchased materials
complies with the relevant laws and regulations. During the
qualification process, suppliers are subject to assessment,
on-site audits on product quality and capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department. The
Group only made purchases from suppliers listed on the
approved vendor list. Suppliers have to sign the “Supplier
General Rules of Conduct” to confirm their compliance with
business ethics, health & safety environment and public
responsibilities rules.

Anti-Corruption

The Group pursues stringent anti-corruption policy and
safeguards interests of the Group and all stakeholders;
we require all stakeholders to comply with the Hong Kong
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and other applicable
anti-bribery laws in their workplace, if appropriate.

The Group has formed a clear set of supervision and
reporting guides, under which all units or individuals have
the rights to report any violations of the Company or its
departments. All information concerning the informer is kept
in strict confidence.

Our Chairman, Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy is responsible to
monitor the reporting system, conduct investigation as well
as report to the board of directors, and Audit Committee for
all irregularities and violations of laws and regulations.

The Group will also review our anti-corruption policies to
ensure its effectiveness.

There is no lawsuit regarding corruption within the Group or
its employees during 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

I) Community Investment

As a socially responsible member, the Group is committed
to cater for the needs of the communities where we operate.
The Group strives to contribute to society by focusing on
four areas including living standards of the community,
culture, education and development and labor cooperation.

We improved the living standards of the community by
serving under-privileged citizens. For example:

. We made contribution of goods or providing services
to support or fund the projects held by various social
service agencies. In addition, we also encouraged
the Group’s stakeholders (including employees and
customers) to donate to charitable organizations.

. Organized, facilitated and supported staff to participate
in voluntary services, such as holding blood donation
day, visiting people in need regularly, or arranging
outdoor activities for disadvantaged groups.

. We provided employment opportunities to the
disadvantaged and create a win-win situation. The
Group hires disabled people who have completed
retraining courses, and give priority to those suppliers
who hire disabled people or participate in a variety of
mentorship programs.

. The Group hired three disabled persons during the
year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE-HELERRE (E)

ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND SUSTAINING
EFFORTS

A)

B)

34

Emissions

Climate change has become a challenging problem for
the world. As a responsible member of the planet, we
are committed to protect the environment, and contribute
to a better living community by developing appropriate
emission reduction targets and corresponding measures.
The goal is to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions and other
environmental impacts by keeping strict supervision and
control to achieve the desirable results.

The Group pledged to make continuous improvement on
managing and monitoring waste gas, waste water, solid
waste and noise. Every year, through engaging external
licensed testing laboratories, we conduct testing on
environmental parameters to evaluate the capability of
existing facilities on meeting regulatory and environmental
requirements and national standards.

Moreover, across the Group’s major operation units we
have an environmental management system. This system
provides a mechanism for us to deal with emergencies
on an effective and timely manner in case of severe
environmental pollution accidents, as well as keeping track
of the Group’s energy efficiency and emission reduction
targets.

Wastewater Management

The Group ensured the normal operation of wastewater
treatment and purification facilities to control the effluent
not exceeding the national limit, as well as enhancement of
water recyclability and reduction of wastewater discharge.
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C)

D)

E)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Solid Waste Management

We complied with the requirements as set out in the local
environmental protection laws and regulations in the
PRC, including, but not limited to, the “The Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Regulations of Guangdong Province on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”. Our
other regional sites in Hong Kong and Taiwan are expected
to be in compliance to their own local laws and regulations.

To prevent potential harm to human health through the
contamination of soil, air and water resources, the Group
commits to ensure proper and immediate treatment of
hazardous waste and waste that requires strict control
by engaging capable and qualified companies to collect
and go for further handling. Centralized waste collection,
storage, transfer facilities are available for on-site solid
waste in accordance to national standards, and to maximize
recycling rate.

Licensed companies are engaged to collect waste for
recycling purposes and proper disposal to landfills.

Exhaust Air Management

The Group managed the emissions of air pollutants in
accordance with regulations and prohibited employees from
burning within the premises those wastes such as plastics,
which might generate toxic and hazardous gases.

Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)
Emission

The Group understood that business trips would increase
energy consumption and hence the increase of GHG
emissions. Therefore, the Group is striving to reduce the
number of business trips or number of persons on trip,
and to replace business trips in form of phone or video
conferences for reduction of GHG emission.

We also set an aim to maintain a zero hazardous emission
environment and to mitigate all unnecessary hazardous
emissions at a minimal level. The Group strictly complied
with the above said standards, rules, regulations and
internal policies throughout the year and our aim was
successfully achieved. We will continue to do so in the
future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE-HELERRE (E)

36

There were no cases of non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to air pollution and emission during

REZB-—tFAALERBRTIETEEK
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2017.
2017 2016
emissions emissions
2017 ZE-tF 2016 “E-NE
CO,-¢ (carbon dioxide equivalent) COe (ZEItHER) “E-tE #HE ZE-RF HHE
Scope 1 (land transportation) HE1(ERER) 46.65 tonnes 1 064  46.36 tonnes M 0.42
kg CO,-e/km kg CO,-e/km
FR-G1HK TR-G1LH
EE/NB EE/NE
Scope 2 (operations) #E2(2E) 2,416.11 tonnes B 13.45 2,064.81 tonnes I 11.42
Tonnes per million Tonnes per million
quantities shipped quantities shipped
W/ SEEH B/ SHEH
£EYHE %EYE
Scope 3 (business flights) HE3 (FHERT) 17.72 tonnes M 0.08  19.47 tonnes M 0.10
kg CO,-e/km kg CO,-e/km
FR-G1HK TR-G1LH
58/08 £8/18
Explanation: AR
Scope 1: Emission from land transport from Shunde factory HE1: BEEIREBEHZRIEHE
to plating house in Shenzhen, and sending B UHEKEBREEEREN
finished goods to Hong Kong warehouse. BEphE o
Scope 2: Emission from electricity usage in Shunde HE2: BEEIK URAE- - FIERS
Factory, and regionally offices in Taiwan, Bt EREENASHERIER
Shenzhen and Hong Kong.
Scope 3: Emission from taking flights for business trips. HE3: FLFEBERITIMMEVERE -

Environmental Key Performance Indicators

RERAREANER

2017 2016

emissions emissions

2017 “E-tF 2016 “E-NE

Air emission BRER “E-tF FHE “E-RE HHE
No, AALN 242.17 tonnes 332 244.86 tonnes 1 3.48
kg CO,-e/km kg CO,-e/km

TR-ELH TR-GMR

E8/1E E8/1E

SO, k=R A) 0.29 tonnes 1 0.003 0.29 tonnes K 0.003
kg CO,-e/km kg CO,-e/km

TR-Efk TR-SE

E8/NE E8/1E

PM B 18.03 tonnes B 025  18.31tonnes M 0.27
kg CO,-e/km kg CO,-e/km

TRZGLE TR-EILE

28/NE 28/1E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

F) Energy Conservation

We implemented the following energy-saving and energy
efficiency measures at various office locations to reduce
energy usage:

. Installed high-performance electrical equipment.
Replaced the traditional air compressors by variable
frequency compressors reducing electricity usage by

50%;

. Used automatic lighting control system;

. Installed LED lighting on office floors to reduce
electricity usage and motion sensors are also used in
the lobbies;

. Employees must turn off lights and unnecessary
energy devices to reduce energy consumption and
avoid unnecessary use of energy; and

. We have increased the height of the ceiling in the
molding area to improve ventilation. Besides, the air
cooling system was changed to water cooling system
to improve energy efficiency.

G) Paper Usage
We have developed the following measures to reduce paper
usage:
. Implemented electronic approval system;
. Double-sided printing; writing on both sides of papers;

. No paper cup is provided and glasses are used when
serving external visitors;

. Reused stationeries such as file folders and
envelopes;

. Placed recycling bins around the office to collect used
paper products; and

. Placed waste paper recycling bins next to the printers
so that employees can deposit and reuse recycled
papers conveniently.

H) Water Consumption

We have implemented the following to conserve water

usage:
. Checked water consumption regularly;
. Repaired dripping faucets or hoses in a timely manner;
and
. Minimized water pressure.
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Green Procurement

To conserve our environment, besides quality, cost and
delivery time, we also give priority to those suppliers
providing environmentally friendly and energy-saving
products and implement the following measures:

. Informed suppliers our requirements over
environmental protection and energy saving;

. Gave priority to high energy-efficient products;

. We required suppliers to reduce packaging materials
or use recyclable materials; and

. Green Manufacturing.

Whenever there is a significant change in equipment setting
or production scale in the factories, internal environmental
assessment will be performed. In addition, the Group
conducted regular external environment assessments on
boundary noise level, wastewater discharge, etc. These
assessments evaluated the impact of our operations on the
environment, and assisted us to determine the appropriate
remedial actions in a timely manner.

Electricity, Water and Packaging Materials consumption is
as follows:

1)

BRERE

RTRERE  RTmE  HANIYEE
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FEEmA & AT HEE :
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2017 2016
Consumption of RE —E—tHF —E—REF
Electricity ESp) 3,835,100.00 3,877,470.25
KWh TEE  KWh TEE
Water 7K 38,863.00 37,537.03
Tonnes M Tonnes W
Packaging Materials BEMB 20.31 21.17
Tonnes M Tonnes W

Unit per million finished goods quantities shipped: SEEAERRREHES
2017 2016
Consumption of AE —E—+F —E—REF
Electricity ESp) 21,356.00 27,603.71
KWh TEE  KWh TR
Water 7K 216.41 267.23
Tonnes M Tonnes W
Packaging Materials BEM B 0.11 0.15
Tonnes M Tonnes W
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J) Energy Saving Project

To achieve the energy saving motive, we have substituted
the hydraulic machinery by frequency conversion machinery
during the year so as to upgrade the encapsulation facilities.
Through advancement to frequency conversion mode, the
cooling water circulation system is removed and thus no
more water is used in this machinery for cooling. Moreover,
when the motor is installed with frequency conversion, its
operating efficiency is improved and thus about 20,000 KWh
electricity could be reduced annually.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERES

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

During the current year, the principal activities of the Group
are manufacturing and sales of its own branded power discrete
semiconductors namely Schottky and MOSFET. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements. There are no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 5 to 7 of
this annual report which forms part of this directors’ report.

For the key performance indicators of the Group, please refer to
the section of “Financial Review” in the report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017. During the year, no
interim dividend was paid.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company and outstanding share options of the Company and its
subsidiaries are set out in notes 26 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past four financial years is set out on page 140.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility in community affairs, environmental protection
and corporate governance during its business operation in
order to achieve its sustainable development. The Company’s
Environment, Social and Governance Report is set out on pages
28 to 39 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed shares of the Company during
the year end 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David
Mr. Hong James Man-fai

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy
Mr. Tang Che Yin
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam, Peter
Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Hong James
Man-fai, Mr. Tang Che Yin and Mr. Lam, Peter shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company still
considers such Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable
smooth operation within the Group, the Group offered competitive
remuneration packages (with reference to market conditions
and individual qualifications and experience). The remuneration
packages are subject to review on a regular basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and achievement, to the Board for determination.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
have entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years, commencing from the Listing Date.
The appointment of the executive Directors may be terminated by
either party by giving a least three months’ written notice to the
other.
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Each of the INEDs have enter into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years, commencing from
the Listing Date. The appointment of each of the INEDs may be
terminated by either party by giving a least one month’s written
notice to the other.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the directors of the Company
are considered to be in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANIES AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company and/or any of their respective associates had the
following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any of its
associated corporations (which has the same meaning as defined
in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the GEM Listing
Rules:
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I. Long positions in the shares of the Company: |. RALATIROWEFE :
Percentage
Number of of
Shares held/  shareholding
Capacity/ interested as at
Nature of inthe 31 December
interest Company 2017
fisE/ BE-Z-tfF
BERZEN t=-A=+-8H
Name of Director BB 5/ Rt E ARTRABE LHNEREIL
Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy BEELE(HEE]D  Interestin a controlled 1,151,276,660 71.58%
(“Mr. Yung”) corporation (notes 1 and 2)
STEEEEES (M 1R2)
Mr. Hong James Man-fai ML E (%4 ])  Beneficial interest (note 3) 12,531,657 0.78%
(“Mr. Hong”) BERBEAAMZ3)
Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David BRELEE(E%LE])  Beneficial interest 2,703,838 0.17%

(“Mr. Chow”)

Notes:

BERERA

MyEE -

44

Mr. Yung is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Red
Dynasty Investments Limited (“Red Dynasty”). Red Dynasty holds
80.5% interest in Shell Electric Holdings Limited (“Shell Electric”). Lotus
Atlantic Limited (“Lotus Atlantic”) is wholly and beneficially owned by
Sybond Venture Limited (“Sybond Venture”), and Sybond Venture is
wholly and beneficially owned by Shell Electric. Mr. Yung is therefore
deemed to be interested in 1,129,603,327 Shares held by Lotus Atlantic
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Shell Electric for the
purpose of SFO.

21,673,333 Shares that are charged by the certain shareholders to
Lotus Atlantic pursuant to the share charges.

Mr. Hong is the beneficial owner of 12,531,657 Shares, in which
9,573,659 Shares are charged in favour of Lotus Atlantic pursuant to
the share charge to be effective on the 7 October 2016 and executed by
Mr. Hong.
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Il. Long Position in the underlying Shares

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EFEREE (R

. RAEEROGHNEER :

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
underlying as at 31
Name of Director Capacity Shares held December 2017
BE-2-tF
Fris A6 +tZA=+-HL
EEpA 514 RoEE WEREDL
Mr. Hong Beneficial interest 5,408,343 0.34%
HEE BERBEEA (Note 1) (Hf&t1)
Mr. Tang Che Yin ( “Mr. Tang”) Beneficial interest 2,800,000 0.17%
HEAEE (HEE]D BRBEEA (Note 2) (Hfit2)
Notes: BiaE :

1. These underlying Shares represent 5,408,343 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the unlisted physically settled share options granted to Mr.
Hong on 22 March 2017 pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 19 September 2016 under which the said options
can be exercised by Mr. Hong from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2027 (both
days inclusive) at the exercise price of HK$0.165 per Share.

2. These underlying Shares represent 2,800,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the unlisted physically settled share options granted to Mr.
Tang on 22 March 2017 pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 19 September 2016 under which the said options
can be exercised by Mr. Tang from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2027 (both
days inclusive) at the exercise price of HK$0.165 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
Directors nor chief executive of the Company and/or any of their
respective associates has registered an interest or short positions
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and/or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interest and short positions of the
person (other than the interest of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company as disclosed above) or company which was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

TERRRERG - HEARODREEE
MERRAR

RZBE—tE+ZA=+—H  BEAQXFREF
SR EKRGIEICHRAFENE M EN
AT (EEREAQARSITHRAERIMN) LD AH
EERAEWMT

Percentage of
shareholding

Number of as at
Capacity/nature Shares held/ Long/short 31 December
of interest interested in position 2017
Fish,/ BE-2-t¥
EAEERN +=ZA=+-8H
Name of Shareholder R EE LTV 131 BB EE B/ %E LHMEREIN
Lotus Atlantic Lotus Atlantic Beneficial owner 1,151,276,660 Long 71.58%
(Notes 1 and 2)
BEREAA (Fr1k2) Br
Sybond Venture BRI Interest in a controlled  1,151,276,660 Long 71.58%
corporation (Notes 1 and 2)
ZREEEER (HraE1K2) "R
Shell Electric BRER Interest in a controlled  1,151,276,660 Long 71.58%
corporation (Notes 1 and 2)
TEHEERER (HaF1K2) 55}
Red Dynasty Red Dynasty Interest in a controlled  1,151,276,660 Long 71.58%
corporation (Notes 1 and 2)
TEHEERESR (Fre1k2) Br
Ms. Vivian Hsu ®ERut Family interest 1,151,276,660 Long 71.58%
(Note 3)
ENY 5 (Hfi£3) Br
Notes: BiaE :

1. Red Dynasty holds 80.5% interest in Shell Electric. Lotus Atlantic
is wholly and beneficially owned by Sybond Venture, and Sybond
Venture is wholly and beneficially owned by Shell Electric. Each of
these companies is therefore deemed to be interested in 1,129,603,327
Shares owned and held by Lotus Atlantic which is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shell Electric for the purpose of the SFO.

2. 21,673,333 Shares are charged by the certain shareholders to Lotus
Atlantic pursuant to the share charges.

3. These Shares represent the interest held by Lotus Atlantic which is a
controlled corporation of Mr. Yung. Ms. Vivian Hsu (“Mrs. Yung”) is the
spouse of Mr. Yung. Under SFO, Mr. Yung is deemed to be interested
in all of the Shares owned by Lotus Atlantic and Mrs. Yung is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Yung is interested.

46 Annual Report 2017

1. Red Dynastyi & R 7% & 8§ 1980.5% & & ° Lotus
AtlanticHB BRIELS EERZHHE > MAFHAIZEAH
BREREERFE - LA AR ERERE
Blotus AtlanticFTi5H #91,129,603,327 1% i% 15 #y 4
HoMBFRHBERHME  ZLRABETERHOM
BEEEMBAT -

2. =#TRRBIERG WL HE21,673,333R KR 57 F
Lotus Atlantic °

3. ZE R ELotus AtlanticFTiEE 2% 2R AA
BRENZEHLEE #BREZRLT (SRR AS
FAETME - RIEBFRBEMRSG > SEEWERAES
Lotus AtlanticFTEE BT E R DR > MBAKER
BEBREEFMEBVERGER -

PFC Device Inc.



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017 and so far
as known to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Companies and its Associated Corporations” above, had
notified the Company of an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted pursuant to the
written resolutions on 19 September 2016. The terms of the
Share Option Scheme are in accordance with Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The following is a summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is, among
others, to enable the Company to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Who may join

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option
to any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for the Shares:

(a) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Group;

(b) any directors (including executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) of the Group; and

(c) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents,
advisers and related entities to the Group.
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48

Maximum number of Shares

(a) The maximum number of the Shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Company’s
issued share capital from time to time. No options may
be granted under any schemes of the Company or
the subsidiary if such grant will result in the maximum
number being exceeded.

(b) The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first
commence on the Stock Exchange which amounts to
160,000,000 Shares (the “General Mandate Limit”).

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of
the Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 151,373,750 shares, representing approximately
9.4% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the same
date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant and
connected persons

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue (the “Individual Limit”).

Minimum period of holding an option and
performance target

The Directors may fix any minimum period for which an
option must be held, any performance targets that must
be achieved and any other conditions that must be fulfilled
before the options can be exercised upon the grant of
an option to a participant, provided that such terms and
conditions are fair and reasonable in the opinion of the
Directors and not being inconsistent with the Share Option
Scheme and the GEM Listing Rules.
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6. Time of acceptance of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 30
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option
with a payment of HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration to the grant.

7. Subscription Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme, subject to any
adjustments made in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme, shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, provided that such price will not
be less than the highest of:

(a) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.

8. Time for exercising option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

9. Period of the Share Option Scheme

Unless terminated by the Company by resolution in general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date
on which the Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional.

Details of the share option granted and summary of movements
of the outstanding share options for the year ended 31 December
2017 under the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEREE @

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a
party and in which a Director or his connected entities had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
ended of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which enable the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
respective spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares or underlying shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 59% (2016: approximately 61%) of
the total sales of the Group’s revenue, of which 15% (2016: 14%)
was attributable to the largest customer.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 78% (2016: approximately 80%) of the
total purchases of the Group, of which 25% (2016: 27%) was
attributable to the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued
share capital were held by the public as at the date of this report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into certain transactions in the ordinary
course of business and on normal commercial terms which were
“related party transactions”, details of which are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. These transactions
also constitute “Continuing Connected Transactions” (the “CCTs”)
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and the CCTs are
fully exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholder’s approval.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

As at 31 December 2017, as notified by the Company’s
compliance advisor, Messis Capital Limited (the “Compliance
Advisor”), except for the compliance advisor agreement entered
into between the Company and the Compliance Advisor dated on
29 September 2016, neither the Compliance Advisor nor any of
its directors, employees or close associates had any interests in
the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities) or
otherwise in relation to the Company which is required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the
Group. The Group is committed to building a close and caring
relationship with its employees and business partners, and
improving the quality of services and products to its customers.
Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably
remunerated and regular training is provided for its workers for
the operation of different types of machinery, as well as work
safety. The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. The Group also stays connected with its customers
and suppliers and has ongoing communication with the
customers and suppliers through various channels to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEREE @

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

All the INEDs were delegated with the authority to review
on an annual basis the compliance with the non-competition
undertaking given by each of Lotus Atlantic, Sybond Venture,
Shell Electric, Red Dynasty and Mr. Yung, the controlling
shareholders of the Company (collectively, the “Covenantors”)
in favour of the Company dated 19 September 2016 (the
“Non-Competition Deed”). The Covenantors have provided to
the Company all information necessary for the annual review
by the INEDs and the Covenantors have confirmed to the
Company that each of the Covenantors and his/its associates
have not breached the terms of the undertakings contained in
the Non-Competition Deed. All INEDs confirmed that they are not
aware of any non-compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by
the Covenantors since the effective date of the Non-Competition
Deed and up to the date of this report.

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in place and was in force
throughout the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group was in compliance with all the laws
and regulations applicable to the business operations of the
Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by BDO Limited. A resolution

will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to
re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

T

ER:

+852 2218 8288

Tel :
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

BIIZHENRE

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
: +852 2218 8288 EATHER11138
+852 2815 2239 TKZFI251E

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of PFC Device Inc.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PFC
Device Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 58 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BB R E ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Goodwill impairment assessment

(Refer to notes 5.1(b) and 18 in the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group had goodwill of US$563,000 as at 31 December 2017
relating to acquisition of a subsidiary, PFC Device Corporation
in 2010. Goodwill is subject to impairment assessment at least
annually. Management has concluded that there is no impairment
of the goodwill.

We have identified goodwill impairment assessment as a key
audit matter due to the conclusion of the impairment assessment
was based on value-in-use calculations that require significant
estimation and judgment by the management with respect to the
key assumptions underlying the cash flow projections including
future revenue growth and gross profit margin, as well as the
adoption of discount rate.

Our procedures in relation to management’s goodwill impairment
assessment included:

- Checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

- Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
including discount rate based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

- Comparing the current year actual results with the figures
included in the prior year forecast to consider whether
the key assumptions used by the management had been
over-optimistic;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and annual sales plan of customers, and
considering the reasonableness of this evidence; and

- Performing own sensitivity analyses on key assumptions
including revenue growth rate and gross profit margin.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION
REPORT

IN THE ANNUAL

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BB R E ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ming Wai

Practising Certificate no. P05682

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEEBmR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—tF+A=+t—-HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—KE
Notes US$’000 US$’000
M = FER Ep
Revenue WA 7 27,617 22,840
Cost of sales $HE R A (21,495) (16,310)
Gross profit EF 6,122 6,530
Other income H b A 8 560 70
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERE (136) (123)
Administrative expenses THAX (5,026) (4,076)
Other operating expenses Hin &5
— Listing expenses —EmAX - (1,437)
— Others —Hftb (346) (311)
Finance costs B 75 B S 10 (14) (93)
Other losses HiEE 9 (294) (170)
Profit before income tax P 15 B4 A& R 11 866 390
Income tax expense FiEEE: 12 (306) (472)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to BAREEABLEREE
owners of the Company AL (EE) 560 (82)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 HE W=
Items that may be reclassified HEANHEEN 7 BE B2
subsequently to profit or loss #HE H
Exchange difference arising from BREBIINEBEEN
translation of overseas operations [E X =28 1,396 (637)
Reclassification adjustment of — [E B B 2 B 0E 85 B
translation reserve recycled to BN BEELGE
profit or loss upon deregistration BEEER AR
of a subsidiary - 7
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEE KR
for the year 1,396 (630)
Total comprehensive income AEEEZHEKELE
for the year 1,956 (712)
US Cents US Cents
E E
Earnings/(Loss) per share SREF(FE) 16
— Basic —HA 0.035 (0.006)
— Diluted -8 0.035 (0.006)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e MR ER

As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-REF
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
FME=E FEx ESpv
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZE 17 9,001 8,695
Goodwill ma 18 563 563
Prepayments for acquisition of WEEYZE  BER
property, plant and equipment RAETRTRIE 954 446
Deferred tax assets BREBIBEE 25 122 26
10,640 9,730
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 19 5,819 4,249
Trade and other receivables, ERE S K EMEWFIE 20 7,022 6,363
deposits and prepayments ReREARIE
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary EW-—BRERKEBARRE 23 4 2
Tax prepaid FESBIE 16 =
Cash and bank balances BE KRBTSR 21 5,573 11,170
18,434 21,784
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables EREZ R EMESFIE 22 3,459 3,935
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary Ef—HRAMBARNRE 23 56 60
Bank borrowings RATE K 24 858 -
Tax payable S Bi1E 21 299
4,394 4,294
Net current assets REBEEFE 14,040 17,490
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 24,680 27,220
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITER 24 - 5,000
Net assets BEFE 24,680 22,220
CAPITAL AND RESERVES % 2 % {4
Share capital N 26 2,073 2,062
Reserves & 27 22,607 20,158
Total equity RSB 24,680 22,220

On behalf of the directors

Chow Kai Chiu, David
JE R
Director

EFE

—E—tEEH

RKERES

Hong James Man-Fai
g
Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z-—tHF+-A=+—HLFE

Share
Share Share option Merger Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve*  contribution® reserve* losses* equity
BRE
ki RAEE R AbERE LE EARE  EHEE ERlE
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin i
note 27(a) note 27(b) note 27(c) note 27(d) note 27(e) note 27(f)
W@ W) WE()  MEH(0)  WEE) HizE21(f)
At 1 January 2016 R=2-AE-B-R 5628 - 8 Al 1247 96 (1424) 5471
Loss for the year RERRE - - - = = = (82) (82)
Other comprehensive income REEAMRENE
for the year
- Exchange difference arising from -RESNERELN
translation of overseas operations EiZE - - - - - (637) - (637)
- Reclassification adjustment of -—ENBAREHER
translation reserve recycled to ENABER R
profit or loss upon deregistration BEERERRE
of a subsidiary - - - - - 7 - 7
Total comprehensive income FEEZFNZAE
for the year - - - - - (630) ®) M2)
Issue of shares upon exercise of E-ERBARET
share options issued by a subsidiary BIRE (Eaem i EREl)
(‘PFC Share Options') KETRH 553 89 (89) = = = - 553
Acceleration of vesting of PFC BRTHERENESE
Share Options - - 2 - - - - 2
Termination of PFC Share Options plan ArHThERESE - - 2) - - - 2 -
Recognition of obligation arising from BE-HHELAAEZEL
the share repurchase agreements ROBEGEHREL 2SR
signed by a subsidiary (553) - - - - - - (583)
Issue of shares by a subsidiary under -BHBAARERERE
a subscription agreement as part of BORG (BEELDZ
the reorganisation for the Listing EAN-3) 7,700 - - - - - - 7,700
Derecognition of obligation upon R&LROBERER
termination of the share AIEASE
repurchase arrangement 563 - - - - - = 563
Issue of shares by the Company in REFHNERBESH
return for the shares of a subsidiary AARRTRAUER
during the reorganisation prior to the Listing HEA ARG
(notes 26(v) and 27(c) (W26 B27(c)) (13864) 13266 - 578 - - - -
Issue of shares by the Company for AAFRUTEARTRE
~ Placing (note 26(vi) B (K3026() 516 9.79% . . . . . 10312
- Capitalisation Issue (note 26(vii)) ~ B R4 (H3E26(vii)) 1,529 (1,529) - - - - - -
Share issuance expenses (note 26(vi) IR 7% (HEE26(vi)) = (1,106) = - = = - (1,106)
At 31 December 2016 RoE-AE+ZAZt-A 2062 205% . %05 1247 (1,026) (1504) 22220
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
FeRmgR (8

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z-tF+-A=t-BILEE

Share
Share Share option Merger Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium* reserve reserve*  contribution* reserve* losses* equity
BRE

Rx  REER it AHRE HE ERRE  ERER ELRAE
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§000 US§'000 US$000 US§'000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin TER
note 27(a) note 27(b) note 27(c) ~note 27(d) note 27(e) note 27(f)
Wakor@) W) WH2()  MEH()  HEE) HaE21(f)

At 1 January 2017 ot B 2,062 2053 - 905 1,247 (1026) (1504 22200
Profitfor the year REERA - - - - - - 560 560
Other comprehensive income rEEEM2 ARG

for the year

- Exchange difference arising from -RESNERELN

translation of overseas operations EREE - - - - - 1,396 - 1,396
Total comprehensive income REERENGREE

for the year - - - - - 1,396 560 1,956
Shares issued upon exercise of RAARENEREEST

options granted by the Company TR (Kz26(vii)

(note 26(ii) 1t 248 (81) - - - - 178
Vested share options forfeited (note 28) RKE S BMERE (3he) - - ) - - - 9 =
Share-based payment expense of RAARENEREN

options granted by the Company TR 1B % (rsi2e)

(note 28) - - 326 - - - - 326
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t§+-A=1-H 2,073 20,784 236 905 1,247 310 (935) 24,680

*

The total of these equity accounts at the end of the reporting * RBEEHREERERNERRGSUBMRRTRANFHE] -
period represents “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—tF+A=+t—-HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
uUs$’000 US$’000
FER =
Cash flow from operating activities RETHELEBRERE
Profit before income tax Fr 18 %6 51 & 866 390
Adjustments for: BUT RIEFAE
Interest income F B WA (3) (3)
Interest expenses FER X 14 93
Depreciation on property, ME BERZETE
plant and equipment 1,614 1,430
Write down of inventories to FEREBEZUEEFE
net realisable value 161 138
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEME  BERFZE 4 =
Share-based payment expense R TR 326 2
Exchange difference fE R =% 542 44
Operating profit before working EEESRBAKLEFH
capital changes 3,524 2,094
Increase in inventories FEIEM (1,413) (1,588)
Increase in trade and other receivables, deposits EWE S K& H i fE RIS
and prepayments RE RIFEMFRIEZ M (370) (512)
Increase in amount due from FE U — ) [2) A B BB 2 ) SR IR 3 AN
a fellow subsidiary (2) (2)
Decrease in amount due to FEAS — B R Y B 2 B FR IR 2>
a fellow subsidiary (4) -
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and e B 5 Kk HAth B FRIE
other payables CRL2) /18 0 (771) 1,990
Cash generated from operations EEMSEE 964 1,982
Income tax paid 2HES (725) (542)
Net cash from operating activities RETHMBHRESFHE 239 1,440
Cash flow from investing activities RETBHELBRESRE
Interest received 2 W F & 3 3
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BRERRE (1,901) (1,661)
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHRARSFE (1,898) (1,658)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

FERERER (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tF+-A=+t-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
UsS$’000 US$’000
FEx EYo
Cash flow from financing activities METBHELEESRE

Interest paid 2R E (14) (94)
Increase in bank borrowings (note 32(a)) SR 4T 18 7B AN (MEEE32(a)) 8,016 8,104
Repayment of bank borrowings (note 32(a)) B2 R 1T A (HIEE32(a)) (12,158) (4,702)

Decrease in amount due to ultimate B R A& IR A R RRIER 2

holding company - (52)
Advances from ultimate holding company RAERARBEMANRE - 7,700
Decrease in amounts due to FE A3 B 2 B /B A B R IB R A

fellow subsidiaries - (12,142)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 17 £ B BE 7T 14 B8 IR RE B

exercise of PFC Share Options BITR DTS RIE - 553
Proceeds from issue of shares upon THEAQNTEREFZHITRMG

exercise of the Company’s share options (note P48 78 (Bt 5£26(viii))

26(viii)) 178 -
Proceeds from issue of shares (note 26(vi)) AT R0 BT 15 7R (M E26(vi)) - 10,312
Share issue expenses (note 26(vi)) BITR M E R (HEE26(vi) - (1,106)
Net cash (used in)/from REEE (FTA) B8R

financing activities bk (3,978) 8,573
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRkRREeEE

cash equivalents (R 2) /18 hnF 8 (5,637) 8,355
Cash and cash equivalents at FHEESRESEE

beginning of year 11,170 2,806
Effect of foreign exchange rate change ExEEHHTE 40 9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRBELEE 5,573 11,170
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESEEERDN

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances BHERBITER 5,573 11,170
—E—tEER EiEETHERLT 63



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e TRk &L

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

1.

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

PFC Device Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 October 2016 (the “Listing”).

The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 1350, Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is located at 1/F,
Shell Industrial Building, 12 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong.

The Group, comprising the Company and its subsidiaries,
is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of power
discrete semiconductors (the “Semiconductor Business”).

The Company’s holding company is Lotus Atlantic Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)
and the directors of the Company consider its ultimate
holding company is Shell Electric Holdings Limited (“Shell
Electric”), a company incorporated in Bermuda.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued) 1. —REHR(E)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 R=ZZB—tF+=A=+—H LRAGHE
December 2017 are as follows: RENFHFBAOT :

Effective interest

held by
Place of the Company
incorporation/ Issued and AR FRFAHERER
Name of subsidiaries operation paid up capital  Directly Indirectly Principal activities
AR AR L B
MEARERE Rewd ERTRARKRAK E# ME TEER
PFC Device Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 12,656,153 100% - Investment and trade mark
(“PFC Device Holdings’) HERELZBEE /F®E  preference shares holding
BT ERERAR of US$13,222,820 REERREEERZ
(Mg trER D) 12,656,153/ /& %t It
BEER
13,222,820% T
658,255 common
shares of
US$658,255
658,255/ & B R
BEES
658,255 Tt
PFC Device Corporation BVI/Taiwan 4,956,153 - 100% Research and development
(note (i)) HERUHE /A2 preference shares and sales of power
PFC Device Corporation of US$5,522,820 discrete semiconductors
(FE(i)) 4,956,153} 18 % % MEREERAXYE
AEER FER
5,522,820% 7T
105,000 common
shares of
US$105,000
105,000 & & I
BEEAR
105,000% 7T
PFC Device (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong dollars - 100%  Sales of power discrete
HEe Tt (BB)BRAA E (“HK$’)1 semiconductors
1% ([ET]) HERANYEEER
Guangdong PFC Device Limited The People’s US$13,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing and sales
(“PFC Device (GD)") (note (ii)) Republic of 13,000,000 7T of power discrete
ERERHHETHEERLA China (“PRC) semiconductors
TEREREH) REARLENE HERHERA
(B3 (ii)) (THE) hEYER
—E—tEER EHiEETHEERLT 65



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

66

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Notes:

(i) PFC Device Corporation has set up a branch in Taiwan which
is principally engaged in research and development, sales and
marketing of the Group’s products.

(ii) PFC Device (GD) was established in the PRC as a
wholly-foreign-owned enterprise and has set up a branch in the
PRC for provision of sales support services.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December

2017 were approved and authorised for issue by the

directors of the Company on 28 March 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis.

The financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates and assumptions are
based on management’s best knowledge and judgment of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates
and assumptions are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2017:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in note 32 - notes to
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the above amendments has no
material impact on these financial statements as the
clarified treatment is consistent with the manner in
which the Group has previously recognised deferred
tax assets.
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RE MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs 3. RMHIREBTEEHBRE
(Continued) 28| (&)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been (b) © 78 #5185 & & XY F 5] A
issued but are not yet effective BIIEENBEREER

T #HEIREBTERBYBREER

The following new or revised HKFRSs potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

HREAEEMBEHRREE  HEH
R EREN  RAREAEERERM -

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Revenue from Contracts with

BREMBREER HMBEIA

Eo

BREMBREER HEFIIGY
#15%; Z W'
ERMBEHRELY BEE

#16%%

BREMBREER UROXNZRZZ
F2 2 BH] 2ENRE
ERMBHRERL AEREIRAGBA
FOW 2 BH]

BREMBREER HEFIIGHZ

HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15) '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22  Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23  Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?
Annual Amendments to HKFRS 3
Improvements Business Combinations;
to HKFRSs HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements;

2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 Income Taxes; and
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs ?

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

The directors anticipate that all of the relevant
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after
the effective date of the pronouncement. The directors
are currently assessing the possible impact of these
new or revised standards on the Group’s results and
financial position in the first year of application. Those
new or revised HKFRSs that may have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements are set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if the objective of the entity’s business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs

(Continued)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have

70

been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9.

Debt instruments classified as trade and other
receivables, deposits and cash and bank balances
carried at amortised cost are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on principal outstanding. Accordingly, these
financial assets will continue to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost upon the application of
HKFRS 9.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been changed.

Except for the expected credit loss model which may
result in earlier provision of credit losses, the directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9
will have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs 3. R REBITEBHMERE
(Continued) 8 (%)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: l|dentify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitive
disclosures related to revenue.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to
HKFRS 15. The amendments to HKFRS 15 include
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs

(Continued)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have

72

been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors do not anticipate that the
application will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

Annual Report 2017

(b) B 1B 1 5 & R4 37 3T 0 48
BB B REER ()

ERMBREEAEISHETFT L
BNz W (&)

EERFAAREAEBYHHREER
FISHAUREHRESHRE AM - &
EHPEEERASTSHEHREHE

BRRENKEAERESEELERY
L

BERMBEHESENE16REE

ERPBHREEANF16RNERBH
HRAEBSFEAFI7TRHERE
iR sl \E-ABEASFTENX
THREABAERZAEER12ER 2
HEEENREE KRIFEVHEERKR
BE -BEXH REEBVHRE
FERIZE165, REARBAEAEE
E -RAREEREAEEEEENE
Ao URARBETREBENEER
& - BFit - FEAREIEERBNE
AREEEMAMENFTE  XKHEEER
BENREEEDREZIMD A S A
2 WHERERERBIHR - Lo - £
AEEENMHEEERREETE -
AEREATHENEENR LB
EEREARAASEBBETELR
HEMER A THELLBAEENHE
BEIISHBEETHNIR - EEST
REFEERELARE (FBSHE
RIZE175%) BERACEHENHAEMNA
HAERRRE -

PFC Device Inc.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately US$518,000 as disclosed in note
30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, as the leases will be
capitalised in future, operating lease expenses
will no longer be recorded for these leases while
depreciation and interest expense will increase due to
the depreciation charge on the right-of-use asset and
the interest expense on the lease liability. The new
standard is not expected to apply until the financial
year ending 31 December 2019 and the impact
on the Group’s financial position and results upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16 on those leases are not
expected to be material. In addition, more quantitative
and qualitative disclosures about the leases will be
made following the requirements of HKFRS 16.

Except for the above, other new or revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective are
unlikely to have material impact on the Group’s results
and financial position upon application.

—E—tEEH

3.

RE MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

Wm%1&&%7%%%&%¢

N

i
g

ERUBHEEAFE16REE (F)

RUBARITS  BEUBEREE
I EH LN AE SRR
173 o 09t A B EHRE © B - B
BAARERLEED BACHEARR
MERE DHEMERLNARE
HH D 0 L1 o
\=B—tE+=A=+—0 A%
16 7 B 806848 L AR 0518,000
£ (MMEIFEE) o DS FEE
FRERHGTOBBYBRELR
FCRATEANEE - HAEB
RAEARKEREBNERSHA
MG  BERREAERHY
8585 AU E 163 B 1 & E EE T
RROEN - RS2 EUERR
REEBARAL( BTRBERLS
AR ERCE AR - BB RE
AREAENTE#ANEASENT
B AE RSN TR - 5
M EAREERE-"F—NF+=
ALt ALHEEESTEA L
AEAARSAERAT BRI RS
o8 81 55 1685 3 4% 5 B 60 B B R0 R 3

BTERREATE - LI BERE
BB HREENEICRNREETE

ZEREENEENEMRKE -

BREMESN  CSEMESRERNE

o] RAEBTEBYHHREEAF
UREETEABHASENEERY

BIRRELEEKRELE -

nHER2E 73

o
anp
mv



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Business combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (see 4.2 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments, in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BERGTHBUR (&)
(Continued)
41 EHREEE (&)

4.1 Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to the fair value of
the contingent consideration are recognised against
goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in
profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on business combination is measured
according to the policy in note 4.3.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, and
also the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

76

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures represents the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
including contingent liabilities as at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
an asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. In case of
associates and joint ventures, goodwill is included in
the carrying amount of the interests in associates and
joint ventures, respectively, rather than recognised
as a separate asset on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end of
each reporting period or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of goodwill may be impaired (note 4.15). On
subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint
venture, the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold is included in determining the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The estimated useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Moulds, tools and machineries 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 3-8 years

—E—tEEH

4.3

4.4

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. EREEE (&)

EE (|)

BEENSHREPEEE RETRE
BN ROHBESBSHABREBET
BECIRAETELREE IIgE
SR it AT EE B (fI5E4.15) - B
HEHNE-BHHNBAR BEQITR
RELXR BTHEVRSIEES
PNSEREEHECERNBER
E{E °

M BERBRBEEANBRRITNE
k2T RERBE (WHE) AMK-

ME- - BMERRBOIABEALBA
BERWBZSHEEEBRGEHRE -

BEXHESEHEBERABZARARE
ERNBERAUEERAAER  MZIE
BHR AR EMAEZERT &
SEEMFAAEEZREERERAS
—HBVEE FIEHMEECRRFEE
ERYRBEZHBHBRGESE2E
Wi R IERM T ©

M BERREBAERETRIFE
LATE 5T A £ A S A A E AN (A
MR REBREE -G TERF
B RREERFTELNZRSHES
Apet URBEEBRTEHAR -
AEAFROT

EHMREE 3-10%
WAERE 3-5%
HeE -BEARTA 3-10%
HEMEEE 3-8%F

et ERLAR 77
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

78

4.4 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

4.5

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (note 4.15).

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised initially at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is
their fair value at the date of acquisition. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised over the economic
useful life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are not amortised but reviewed for
impairment at least annually (note 4.15) either
individually or at cash-generating unit level. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5 Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(i)

—E—tEEH

Internally generated intangible assets
(research and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

- it is technically feasible to develop the
product for it to be sold;

- adequate resources are available to
complete the development;

- there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

- the Group is able to sell the product;

- sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and

- expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised
over the periods the Group expects to benefit
from selling the products developed. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the
above criteria and expenditure on the research
phase of internal projects are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

80

4.6

4.7

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee under operating lease

Rentals payable under the operating leases, net of any
incentives received or receivable, are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to customers (trade debtors)
and also incorporated other types of contractual
monetary asset. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

—E—tEEH

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
the debtor’s financial difficulty; or

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

An impairment loss on loans and receivables
is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of loans and receivables is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant loans and
receivables.
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4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the loans and receivables exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, amounts due to
related companies and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(note 4.16).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

—E—tEEH

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised initially at its
fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

84

4.7

4.8

4.9

Financial instruments (Continued)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Recognition of revenue and other income

Revenue and other income are recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the income can be measured reliably
on the following bases:

(i) Sales of goods are recognised as revenue when
goods are delivered and title has been passed,
taking into account sales returns and discounts
and rebates allowed by the Group.

(ii) Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFBX (H)

(Continued)
4.10 Income tax 410 FRr8%

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

86

(Continued)

411 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

4.12 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
initial transactions. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain entities of the
Group are currencies other than US$. For the purpose
of preparing the consolidated financial statements,
assets and liabilities of these entities at the end of
the reporting period are translated into US$ at the
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated into
US$ at the average exchange rate for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12 Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

4.13 Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

(iii)

—E—tEEH

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related
service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

4. EREEE (&)

4.12 S (48)

REEBNEBEK BEEHERBRA
ERER#EARZELRR 2R
EAZHNEAHERS 2 —MIE

HoBEERS -

WEEBNRBRAEENBEERQFE
ARBEERZBINEBNEERERE -
WRFTREHERRE - FIELENE
HERENE R AR -

A3 EERTA

(i)

(i)

(iii)

HHESEA

FHESEMNERERATEREER
HERRENFEREBRE
TZEAURSZHENNES
BA (BBBABRIS) - BHES
BARNESREEERBNHE
R o

BEBRREBREFZRFEFHFRYT
1FHER EEREEXNNKBABIL -

ERBFTRAREE

6 % 88 FOR R G EIE A K
RESRHERBEHNEREIR
X °

BEREAR

BREMNRAEEELHEAEE
BANREHERASERIER
A (G R XA BEBAE R B (L
REERE)ER -

HRETHERAT 87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

88

(Continued)

4.14 Share-based payment transactions

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and others providing similar services. All employee
services and similar services received in exchange for
the grant of financial instruments are measured at their
fair values. The cost of equity-settled share-based
compensation is measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instrument at the date on which
they are granted. In determining the fair value, no
account is taken of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All equity-settled share-based compensation is
ultimately recognised as an expense in profit or loss
unless it qualifies for recognition as asset with a
corresponding increase in equity. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
allocated over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of equity
instruments that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

The fair value of the share options granted by
the Company is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve. Upon
exercise of the share options, the relevant amount in
the share option reserve is transferred to the share
premium account. In case the vested share options
are forfeited, the amount in the share option reserve is
released directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BERGTHBUR (&)
(Continued)
415 FERMEERE

4.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s goodwill and property, plant and
equipment are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired.
All other assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the assets’ carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (that is, a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purpose.

Impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

90

(Continued)

4.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment loss recognised for cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro-rata to other
assets in the cash-generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell, or value-in-use, if
determinable.

Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods, including impairment loss
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable
amount, but only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised.
A reversal of such impairment is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

4.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFBX (H)

(Continued)
41T BERIREE

4.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event
which will probably result in an outflow of economic
benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

4.18 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments, and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components.

4.19 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received
and all the attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grants relate to cost items, they are
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate are recognised as expenses.
Government grants related to income are presented
under other income.

4.20 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (8

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

92

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(a)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(b)

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgment,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumption
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

5.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial reporting period are as follows:

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful
lives, and related depreciation charges for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. The
estimates are based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of those assets of
similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives.
Management will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore affect the
depreciation charges in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EAGHYMER MG TREMN
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EERR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
5.1 fhsFr FHEEMENEEZRE (F)

5.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

94

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews at least annually and
assesses whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. Other assets including property,
plant and equipment with definite useful lives
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstance indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit has been
determined based on value-in-use calculation,
which incorporate a number of key estimates and
assumptions about future events and therefore,
are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making these
key estimates and judgments, the directors
take into consideration assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period and appropriate
market and discount rates. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and
actual transactions entered into by the Group.
Future changes in the events and conditions
underlying the estimates and judgments would
affect the estimation of recoverable amounts and
result in adjustments to their carrying amounts.
Details about the estimates used in assessing
impairment for goodwill are set out in note 18.

Annual Report 2017

(b)

FEMEERE

FEEESBFRNLFEHE
EREZRE BEERERTF
HHNHEMEE (BEWE BE
BB DREBSHHABERE
ftBRTEERMEBBATWE
THERERERS BEEIRE
EEBMN W E S EREE
ENEREEETE  AEBREH
BREBAREHNEXRMGTR
B AtTENHEEMEIL
HERERFEEREZER - ME
HZEEAGARAGE  E5
FEZENBREZENHEHRR
MERBHRAREEMSNRKE
RE - AEBEESEMLESMTESE
BEhmBEERASE] LHNER
RZETERHL o fhEt R A E
MBS R AR IR R Z B
gnE R EENGETEERAY
HIREEFHAR - BEFED
R (E B P ER A B9 (5T 2 5 15 8
RFE18 ©

PFC Device Inc.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

—E—tEEH

Allowance for inventories

Management carries out inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of
each reporting period and provides allowance
for obsolete items. A considerable amount
of judgment and estimates is required in
determining such allowance. If conditions which
have an impact on the net realisable value of
inventories deteriorate, additional allowances
may be required. Management reviews the
inventory ageing analysis at the end of the
reporting period and identifies slow-moving
inventories that are no longer suitable for
consumption and saleable. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice
price and current market conditions.

Impairment of receivables

The impairment policy for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on management’s
evaluation of collectibility and ageing analysis of
receivables and on the specific circumstances for
each account. Judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer or
debtor. If the financial condition of the customers
or debtors was to deteriorate resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance will be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EAGHYMER MG TREMN
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EERR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
5.1 fhsFr FHEEMENEEZRE (F)

5.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e) Estimates of current and deferred tax (e) BIVHARIEZERE fht

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required
in determining the amount of the provision for
taxation, the timing of payment of the related
taxation and the implementation of these taxes.
The Group recognised income tax and other
taxes based on management’s best estimates
according to their understanding of the tax rules.
The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the tax expense in the
period in which the tax calculations are finalised
with the tax authorities.

5.2 Critical judgment in applying accounting

policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Accounting for transactions entered into with
subcontractors

Certain production processes are outsourced to
subcontractors. Terms and arrangements agreed
with the subcontractors and the business practice of
individual subcontractors are different. The Group has
followed the guidance on principal-agent relationship
as set out in HKAS 18 Revenue to determine the
appropriate accounting treatment for the transactions
entered into with different subcontractors which is
based on an evaluation of the terms and arrangements
agreed with different subcontractors and the business
practice of individual subcontractors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segment information

The operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s chief operating decision-maker
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance. The Group has identified the
following reportable operating segments:

Sales of power discrete
semiconductors

— This segment engages in
manufacturing and
sales of power discrete
semiconductors

Trading of raw materials — This segment engages in
sales of raw materials,
mainly Epitaxy

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
Segment revenue represents sales to external customers
and there were no inter-segment sales between different
segments during the year and in prior year. Reporting
segment profit or loss excludes corporate income and
expenses from the Group’s profit or loss before income tax.
Corporate income and expenses are income and expenses
incurred by corporate headquarters which are not allocated
to the operating segments. Each of the operating segments
is managed separately as the resources requirement of
each of them is different.

Information of the operating segments of the Group reported
to the chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment does not
include assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no information of
segment assets and segment liabilities is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DIER (MF)
Operating segment information (Continued) KReEpIE R ()
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments EEAEEEEZRs o ELE (BEFET 2R
including reportable segment revenue, segment profit or SERUL A ~ D ERHEFIREIE - FrERADEF
loss, reconciliations to profit before income tax and other WS BEUR EMoSEE) MT :
segment information are as follows:
Sales of
power
discrete Trading of
semiconductors  raw materials Total
SHEB AN
ThERYER RMBE S B
US$’000 Us$’000 UsS$’000
TER FTER FERr
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_Z—t&+=A
=t+—-HLEE
Reportable segment revenue AE2H2HWA 25,110 2,507 27,617
Reportable segment profit Al 2 8 2 26 Al 5,074 1,048 6,122
Corporate and unallocated income DNRARKDEKA 560
Corporate and unallocated expenses DERRDEZ E
— Employee costs —BIMA (3,698)
— Rental and related expenses -HEeERMEEXE (264)
— Finance costs L J5EN (14)
— Others* — H A (1,840)
Profit before income tax Fr {5 %t A& A 866
Sales of power
discrete Trading of Corporate/
semiconductors raw materials Unallocated Consolidated
HERAR
WEYER FEHMHES DR/ KR RE
US$’'000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TER FER TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-t&H+=
A=+-HLEE
Depreciation e 1,252 - 362 1,614
Write down of inventories REREZTER
to net realisable value FE 161 - - 161
Additions to specified REREERBEE
non-current assets® 1,923 - - 1,923
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER (&)
Operating segment information (Continued) e WER (])
Sales of
power discrete Trading of
semiconductors raw materials Total
hEYER EMEE 5 Rk
Us$'000 UsS$'000 US$’000
EY EV" EY
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z-—X"E+=A
=t+—-HLEEE
Reportable segment revenue CIEE 01N 20,220 2,620 22,840
Reportable segment profit A 2 8, 2 26 Al 5,478 1,052 6,530
Corporate and unallocated income NARARDEBA 70
Corporate and unallocated expenses NARRDE XL H
— Listing expenses —rthmE% (1,437)
— Employee costs -BIRK (2,962)
— Rental and related expenses -HEREBELH (263)
— Finance costs — B AR (93)
— Others* — H {th* (1,455)
Profit before income tax Fri8 % sDE A 390
Sales of
power discrete Trading of Corporate/
semiconductors raw materials Unallocated Consolidated
HEBAS
hEYEH EMHES AR/ RAE Fe)
US$'000 US$'000 US$’000 US$000
E E EYe E
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-x&+4Z
B=t—HLEE
Depreciation e 1,173 - 257 1,430
Write down of inventories to BEREZTER
net realisable value FE 138 - - 138
Additions to specified REBEFRBEE
non-current assets* 1,658 - - 1,658
# Including additions to property, plant and equipment, goodwill and 2 BEABEVE BERREE BE URKE
prepayments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (that NE- -BERIZEBEAEAR(BIBEXERBE
is, “specified non-current assets”) ED
* Mainly comprise of legal and professional fees, depreciation, * TEZEESEEREXER - E  ZEREAR
travelling expenses and other office expenses Him A& -
—E—tEER gmeExHER23 99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F 128318 LLEE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segment information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

2 RPE R ()

TRE#AEERTFAEBEENRE

revenue from external customers, determined based on HEEWAN DT :
location of the customers:

2017 2016
—®—tE —EB-AE
Us$’000 uUS$’000
FER ESp
Hong Kong "iE - -
Other regions of the PRC A E At it = 16,665 13,323
Taiwan =) 9,581 8,282
Asia, other than the PRC N ABEEH 1,371 1,235
27,617 22,840

An analysis of the Group’s specified non-current assets by
geographical locations, determined based on the location of

AEBRBEEMEZ BN EEMT
(NEE)  BEERMBUEE S 2B EHER

the assets or the location of operations in case of goodwill, BEESNAOT :
is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
uUs$’000 uS$’000
FEx E
Hong Kong &8 1 1
Other regions of the PRC o E At it = 9,220 8,347
Taiwan == 1,297 1,356
10,518 9,704
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PHER (&)
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from major customers, each of them REZEAEBRAI0%IUA LN EERS
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, are ZWAEFWT

set out below:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
US$’000 Us$’000
FEx =T
Customer A ZEA 4,024 2,855
Customer B =FEB 3,854 3,243
Customer C =ZFEC 3,061 2,591
Customer D =FD 2,852 2,649
Customer E EFE N/ATIE A 2,620
Customer F ZFF N/ATiE F 2,370
N/A: not applicable as revenue generated by the respective TEA: BHREEFMELENKRAGAREERESE
customers is less than 10% of the Group’s revenue for the EWNBATE10%MmAEA -
respective year.
7. REVENUE 7. WA
The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing AREFBFTERELERMESNR I RY
and sales of power discrete semiconductors. Revenue EEmix o WAKNKNERNDES RNBEES
represented the net invoiced value of goods sold during B BT
the year as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Us$’000 US$'000
TER E
Sales of power discrete semiconductors  $HEBEAR R IRy EE 25,110 20,220
Trading of raw materials REMRE S 2,507 2,620
27,617 22,840
—E—tEER gieexHEEaRL23 101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F 128318 LLEE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfulg A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
uUs$’000 US$’000
FER ESp
Bank interest income SRITRBE WA 3 3
Government grants 425 -
Sundry 132 67
560 70

During the year, the Group received government subsidies
amounting to RMB2,865,000 (equivalent to US$425,000)
in aggregate from the municipal and district levels of the
PRC government. Such subsidies represent rewards to
recognise the Group’s contributions in enhancing the level
of industry development in the district and rewards for going
listing which is in line with the strategies advocated by the
municipal and district government. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attaching to these

FR - RNEBRBPENTHHRRD ERBAA
HEESBNEARY2,865,0007T (1HE
7425,000%7T) © hEEBRHAKEER
AEAEEXZERKENER ZEBURED
AEENHRNNERMFIRENREMET L
THEEE - WEEMWEARBITHERGENE

B ARBR -

subsidies.
9. OTHER LOSSES 9. HtEH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Exchange loss, net (& 5 &8 55 290 170
Write-off of property, plant and equipment H$5¥1% « BE KRR E 4 =
294 170
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B HE AR AR
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
US$’000 US$’000
FER FERT
Interest charges on
bank borrowings 14 93
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 11. FT BB AR F
2017 2016
—B—tHF ZB-RE
Us$’000 US$°'000
FER EX
Profit before income tax is T8 %4 Al v Al J5 28 0 BR

arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration: ZEE 2 -

Current year KEE 86 85

Under-provision in prior year FFERBTRE 2 =
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFERAE 21,334 16,172
Write down of inventories FERBEZUEZRFE

to net realisable value 161 138
Research and development cost*? o 5% % 2% & B AR A 334 292
Write-off of property, MEME BERZE

plant and equipment 4 —
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BMERZETE

equipment 1,614 1,430
Employee benefit expenses (including EERANBZ (BREEEME)

directors’ emoluments) (note 13) (BF&E13) 4,836 3,772
Operating lease charges in FELHREFHKLHEEH

respect of land and buildings 322 318
* included in other operating expenses * TTAHMKERE TR
A exclude staff costs and depreciation of property, plant and o TEREIRARYE BERRERSE

equipment
—ELEER weatEsRAE 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTIBREAX
The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated FETEWERTEHAXSES
statement of comprehensive income represents:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
UsS$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Current tax REEBIE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBHEHR 9 -
— Other regions of the PRC —hEH At ihE
— Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) —EMBHR ((REMER] 231 186
— Taiwan profits tax —RERNBH 158 326
398 512
Deferred tax (note 25) IEAER 18 (MfEE25) (92) (40)
Income tax expense e 306 472

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong
for the year. Profit tax arising from the operations in Taiwan
is calculated at 17% (2016: 17%) on the assessable profit
for the year. EIT arising from other regions of the PRC is
calculated at 25% (2016: 25%) on the estimated assessable
income for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831ALLEE

12. FRrEH R ()

AEERSHAXTHEGS2EKERTH
FRiSBAaF SR T ¢

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
USs$’000 US$’000
FEx Ep
Profit before income tax Fr{8 %t Al Rl 866 390
Tax on profit at the rates ZHEBREZEBRRNB =
applicable to profits in the jurisdictions & % A K Bl 18
concerned 177 124
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BARBBANB KL
for tax purpose (1) -
Tax effect of expenses not AR H0BIBE X T I &
deductible for tax purpose 272 342
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FERRRIARER 2B IEEE
recognised (108) (24)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBREHENT KRS 1 1
Tax effect of other temporary differences REREMERMHERFIEST L
not recognised (17) 28
Others Hth (18) 1
Income tax expense FEfHEX 306 472
13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 13. EERABEX
Employee costs (including directors) comprise: BEERA (BEEEME) 81F
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
US$’000 Us$’000
FEx =TT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMER 4,283 3,579
Contribution to defined contribution m R E SR RET B
retirement plans* 227 191
Equity-settled share-based payment RREERMDZIHX (HEE28)
expense (note 28) 326 2
4,836 3,772
& no contribution is available for reducing the Group’s existing level # AREBIWEOMEBDONEB B BB EHHITKE
of contribution in the future R o
—E—tEER gmeExtaR23 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, FIVE 14. EEMS B EFMAER
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR SREBEAEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<

Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: ZREEENMMEHINOT ¢
Salaries,
allowances Share-hased Pension
and other Discretionary ~ payment scheme
Fees benefits bonus*  expense contribution Total
e 2N BHRER

s REMEN  BERA ROXARX s 3
US§'000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US§'000
FTin Tin Tin i i FTin

(note (i)

(H3E())
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-t5+-5R
Zt-HLEFE

Executive Directors HiTEZ
Mr. Hong James Man-fai (‘Mr. Hong’) HBEE (TREE]) 3 152 3 4 2 224
Mr. Chow Kai Chiu, David (‘Mr. Chow) BREEE(TBEE)) 3 - - - - 3
Non-Executive Directors FHTEZE
Mr. Yung Kwok Kee, Billy PEEEE(§%E)

("Mr. Yung’) 3 - - - -
Mr. Tang Che Yin (‘Mr. Tang’) PEARE (BEL) 3 - - 20 - 23
Independence Non- BUHHTEE

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam, Peter (‘Mr. Lam’) WEXEE (HEL]

(note (i) (B i) 2 - - - - 22
Mr. Leung Man Chiu, Lawrence (‘Mr. Leung’) 23854 ([2%4))

(note (i) (B iit) 2 - - - - 2
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip ECBEE(ExL)

(“Mr. Fan’) (note (i) (i) 2 - - - - 2
Total BE 8 152 23 64 2 319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, FIVE 14. %5@“ € -HER %Eﬁm AER
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SREEAEME (&)
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM< (E)
Salaries,
allowances Share- based Pension
and other Discretionary ~ payment scheme
Fees benefits bonus*  expense contribution Total
=
e REMEN BERL ROIAET BARFER my
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
E ES ES ey EY EY
(note (i)
(B ii))
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE_Z-XRE+ZR
=+-ALEE

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Hong HEE 1 146 42 1 2 192
Mr. Chow BxE 1 = = = = 1
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Yung ECpikea 1 - - - - 1
Mr. Tang BEE 1 - - - - 1
Independence Non-Executive Directors ~ BV F# /T2
Mr. Lam Gt 5 - - - = 5
Mr. Leung REE 5 - - - = 5
Mr. Fan BEE 5 - - - = 5
Total “am 19 146 42 1 2 210

*

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

—E—tEEH

The discretionary bonus is performance-related with the
basis determined by the Remuneration Committee.

These amounts represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the relevant Directors under the PFC
Device Option Scheme (note 28). The value of these share
options was measured according to the accounting policies
for share-based payments as set out in note 4.14. Further
details of the options granted are set out in note 28.

The amount represents the estimated value of share
options granted to the relevant Director under the share
options scheme of a subsidiary. The value of these share
options was measured according to the accounting policies
for share-based payments as set out in note 4.14.

Mr. Lam, Mr. Leung and Mr. Fan were appointed as
independent non-executive Directors of the Company on 19
September 2016.

(iii)

MIEEARRRRAEMELERFTHE
EEEE-

#Z% % FiE C R IBEPFCHE IR 48 5t 811
THEESHBRENGTERE (M
28) - ZEBRENEERIBZMHEL.14
8RO AN BETE - ERM
BRENE - DHERNME28 -

ZEBEECRE — BB AR 2 BRE
AR THBESHBRENGE
8 - ZEBIRENEERIENES 1457
HROZTNEABRGSE -

MELE - REERBELEER=Z—RF
NATNREZERBIFHTES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil). In addition,
none of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group included one (2016: one) director
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in (a) above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining four (2016: four) highest paid individuals
are as follows:

EEME
SRE

(b)

ExME ()

RBZ-Z—+tF+ZA=+—HL
FE o RNEENEBEE
£ EAMAREB S MAKRE BB
HEBSRESBEBEE (ZE—KRF:
M) o b MBEERERRERR
BE-_Z—tHE+-A=+—HLHF
EZ2EAME (=T —RF &) o

TEEREFMAL

rEBLEMEESALTHEE-F
(ZZ2-—RF: —R)ESE (HMzER
EX (@) 25D HRR) - BEHEeR
ME(ZE2-AF: OA)ESHHMA
TRAHMENT :

2017 2016
e -t Y
uUs$’000 US$’000
FEx EST

Salaries, allowances and e  FHREMEBR
other benefits 373 356
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 53 103
Share-based payment expense BHZAEEZ 95 1
Contribution to pension scheme B R TE A AR 12 12
533 472
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, FIVE 14.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the above non-director highest
paid individuals were within the following bands:

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

EEME AEREFMAER
BREBEAEME (&)

(b) EEZESHFMAL (&)

LHlFEEEZSMA LB E N FU
TEHER :

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-REF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007& T 2 &
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 T &

1,500,0007%& J© 2 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2016: nil).

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management who are not directors of the Company
were within the following bands:

AEBTEOREHRSHFMA LM
EAMNE  FRMAXEBRRMA
AEERNRBIERBERBE- - (=
B-RF 8

(c) EREEEMS

BEFUIINSREEEXNECS TR
BB ST F AT SRR :

2017 2016

—B-tF —E-AF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZE%1,000,0005%8 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 T &

1,500,0007% JT 2 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

15.

16.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2016: nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the following data:

15.

16.

Hﬁ IéLl\

BEZZE—tF+ZA=t-BHLEFERY
HERBELFERKRE - BEREMEBEE BRI

FRBEARES (ZB—XF ) ©
BREF, (BE)

BREARF,(BE) DERUTERHE
B

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
uUs$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Earnings/(Loss) BF,(FR)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to owners ZX2Q B#EHE A B ER
of the Company wHL(EB) 560 (82)
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—REF
Number of Number of
share share
[ &vig 4= &g 4=
’000 000
TR TR
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in £ K & 2% 17 % & IR N #E 7 5
issue during the year 1,602,976 1,294,247

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used for
the purposes of calculating basic earnings/(loss) per share
represents the weighted number of shares in issue during
the year, after giving effect of the Capitalisation Issue as
further described in note 26(vii) as if the Capitalisation Issue
had occurred on 1 January 2016.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating the
basic earnings per share of 1,602,976,000 shares, after
adjustment for the potential dilutive effect in the potential
ordinary shares to be issued on the exercise of the share
options granted by the Company on 22 March 2017 (note
28) of 10,849,000 shares.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 is the same as the basic loss per share as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

1 1 O Annual Report 2017

MAEEBREARRBR, (BB FAZBRGZ
ZERMEFLIHEREFAERTRN 2
INFEF $T & - I AR5t K PA BT EE26(vil)#E — 2
Bl EARLEBRIT  BOMBERERLETE
RZE—ARE—HF—H%%E-

BE-Z—tHE+-B=1+—HLEEFEEZE
BREERF > DEAEEZEE AEGZF
BRUBRFESREARET 2 MEFITE
B IR 8 51,602,976,0008% 5+ & - I A D
ARZZE—tF=F -+ _HRBZBERE
(FisE28) 1T ERFHEE%4T7210,849,0008% /&
EEBR2BEHESEEHRAE -

BE_Z-—"Ft+-A=t—-HLFEZE
BREEHERESRERNBEER  RESE
EETEZEBECRITEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12B31BILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - BERRE
Moulds,
Furniture and Office tools and Leasehold
fixtures equipment machineries  improvements Total
IA KR
GRREE BAERE R  HENEEE ag
US$’000 Us$’000 USs$’000 USs$’000 Us$’000
TEn TEn TER S Tin
COST KA
At 1 January 2016 RZZE-RE-A—B 37 79 11,158 1,145 12,419
Translation adjustment BERE ) 1 (644) (68) (713)
Additions NE 1 238 1,054 23 1,316
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-XRE
1 January 2017 +ZA=1+-HE
—E-tf-f-H 36 318 11,568 1,100 13,022
Translation adjustment RERE 2 26 750 7 849
Additions e - 15 1,339 61 1,415
Write-off 6 (4) - (6) - (10)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t&
+=A=t-H 34 359 13,651 1,232 15,276
DEPRECIATION AND FEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 R=E-~E-A-H 20 45 2,995 36 3,096
Translation adjustment BERE (1) = (193) (5) (199)
Depreciation provided HERE 4 21 1,261 144 1,430
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RE
1 January 2017 +=B=t+-HE
“2-tf¥-f-H 23 66 4,063 175 4,327
Translation adjustment BERE 1 7 314 18 340
Depregciation provided TERE 4 54 1,375 181 1,614
Write-off g (4) - (2) - (6)
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t&+ZH
== 24 127 5,750 374 6,275
NET CARRYING AMOUNT EAFE
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t&
+=A=t—-H 10 232 7,901 858 9,001
At 31 December 2016 AZE-RE
+=H=1+-8 13 252 7,505 925 8,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Us$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Carrying amount at 1 January and R—BA—HR+Z-ZA=+—H
31 December ZEREE 563 563

For the purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill is
allocated to the cash-generating unit of manufacturing and
sales of power discrete semiconductors within the operating
segment of “Sales of power discrete semiconductors” and
is tested for impairment, together with other assets, by
the management as at the end of each reporting period by
estimating the recoverable amount of this cash-generating
unit based on value-in-use calculations. The calculations
comprise cash flow projections based on the financial
budgets approved by the management. The period covered
by the financial budgets is three years. Cash flows beyond
the three-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
growth rate of 3%. Based on the results of the impairment
testing, management determines that there is no impairment
in respect of this cash-generating unit.

Key assumptions used by the management in the

BRBEFEMS  BERMEEHEAADE
FER |IKEIMATBRERASNREE
ENRENHERSELEN  YAEERE
BRREEREENELAGTZREELSE
UHNTKREEE  REREMREREME
E—fHERERNH - AR ER EZBERE
KEERMAENYEREAESHNRER
B BBEERENDHER=F - @B
SFEHNRERENERAMGTBRERI%E
E-REBENZNER EEEEEZHR
TEEBEMAERE -

ERRERRSE LB U0 AEEN T

value-in-use calculations of this cash-generating unit hFrEANFEEBREETE
include:
2017 2016
—E-—tFE —EB-AF
Discount rate (pre-tax) B AT IR = 18% 16%
Gross profit margin EF=E 23%—24% 27%—28%

These assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations in respect
of the market conditions and economy which have impact
on the Semiconductor Business. Sales are forecasted with
reference to the annual sale plan provided by customers.
Gross profit margin is forecasted based on the gross profit
margin achieved in prior year adjusted for the expected
change in market conditions and taking into account the
annual sale plan of customers. The pre-tax discount rate
used reflects the specific risks relating to the business and
industry in which this cash-generating unit is engaged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. B&
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx =
Raw materials R ## 2,960 1,563
Work-in-progress TR M 2,256 2,086
Finished goods B mh 603 600
5,819 4,249

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

20 EREZRHMEKRRE - BE
ISSERTEN

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS E:N
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Trade receivables EWE 5 E 6,190 5,015
Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE - =
Trade receivables, net EWE ZRIEFE 6,190 5,015
Other receivables E{M‘Euﬁz“ 8 731 1,221
Deposits and prepayments e REMNRE 101 127
7,022 6,363
The Group normally allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days AEBATHESEFPFZENGEER —RR
after the month of delivery to its trade customers. REE A#%30E60K °
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net), based on RBEHELEER  BREZHE (CF5) &
invoice date, as of the end of the reporting period is as BEHHESMWIRERMANT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-RF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx Ep
0 to 30 days 0£30X 2,278 2,201
31 to 60 days 31260K 2,351 1,828
61 to 90 days 61290K 1,374 779
Over 90 days 90K KA £ 187 207
6,190 5,015

—E—tEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (8

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 20. @W%? *Ef&@u&%klﬁ B
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS RIEMARK(E)
(Continued)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net), based on RBEHELEER  REHHE S WEKRE
due date, as of the end of the reporting period is as follows: SIE (FE) WIREBR 2T ¢
2017 2016
=Bt —E-RF
Us$’000 Us$’000
FER E
Neither past due nor impaired N 488 580 A 2R R (B 5,665 4,730
Past due but not impaired: 2 A HAEREE :
Past due for 30 days or below BAIBOKR AT 525 285
6,190 5,015
At the end of the reporting period, management reviews RBEHELEER  EEBYER REEE
receivables for evidence of impairment on both individual B FE R SR I8 Z BB B & o
and collective basis.
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of R=Z2—tF+=-A=+—H0 ERESZRK
US$5,665,000 (2016: US$4,730,000) were neither past 185,665,000% jt (=& — 7 F © 4,730,000
due nor impaired. These balances relate to a number of Ex)MEAREE  ZEEBRTEET
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. MHME R 2B AR -
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate ERHAERBEZENRE ZRENERESR
to a number of independent customers that have good BERFNREHENETBELEFEE - R
payment record with the Group. Based on past experience, BRELE HRNEEEZUEEAREFHR
management believes that no impairment allowance is EREEHRNERAT2EKE - HEEEMN
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not EHRARZEERELRERSE -
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.
21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21. RERBITHEER
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITFERIES BRITERNE ZZEFIREHK
bank deposits rates. BUF B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. EREZREMENRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
USs$’000 US$’000
FEx =
Trade payables EME 5 RIE 2,037 2,760
Other payables and accruals HihENHIERESER 1,422 1,175
3,459 3,935
The credit period granted by suppliers is normally 30 to 60 HEEETHNEERN —RARXEE ARI0ZE
days after the month of delivery. 60K °
The ageing analysis of trade payable, based on invoice RBEHMELEER  BENESREREEA
date, as of the end of the reporting period is as follows: HEl 5 R DA T ¢
2017 2016
—B—+tF —E-REF
Us$’000 Us$’000
FER E=m
0 to 30 days 0Z230K 945 1,426
31 to 60 days 31£60K 964 1,234
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 120 94
Over 90 days 90K M E 8 6
2,037 2,760
23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FELLOW 23. B BERERANELRRE
SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and ZEREAERF REREAREREE
repayable on demand. = o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

24. BANK BORROWINGS

24, SRITER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Us$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Current REEE
Bank loans subject to repayment on demand EBRIZEREEKA R
clause and due for repayment within one R—FEREH
year HERITE R 858 -
Non-current FRBEME
Bank loan due for repayment after one year R—FRIHEEN
RITER - 5,000
858 5,000

The bank loan classified as non-current liabilities as at 31
December 2016 represented a bank loan with principal
amount of US$5,000,000 scheduled for repayment in March
2018. The related facilities agreement contains a clause
that provides the bank with overriding right to demand
repayment at any time after the committed period. The
committed period will end in January 2018 and accordingly,
this bank loan is classified as non-current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016. This bank loan was early repaid in January
2017.

The above bank loans are unsecured except for
the corporate guarantee provided by the Company,
denominated in US$ and bearing interest at London
Inter-Bank Offered Rate plus certain margin. The annual
interest rates of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 December
2017 was 2.75% (2016: 1.99%).
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REZB-XRETZA=ZT-HIERFR
SENRTEREIR-2E-N\F=/AEE
AR £5,000,000€ THIRITHER - HERE
BRE AR - RITEBREER - A HRE
APBRBREREN - AHEHEER-F
—NE-AHER BHit - KIBEBTERN=
E-R"E+Z A=+ -HEFKESUBRRRK
RO BERFERBEE - LERITERSRA
R-ZZE-—tF—-—BEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

25. DEFERRED TAX 25, R IE

FEERTFERFERERARBRELE
HBREENENMEZRCRIANELEH RS
E/AERESHIAFENOT :

Details of the Group’s deferred tax assets/liabilities
recognised in respect of temporary differences arising
from allowance for inventories and unrealised exchange
differences and their movements during the year are as

follows:

Deferred
tax liabilities/
(assets)
IR EBL IR
&8E(&E)
Us$’000
TR
At 1 January 2016 A=ZE—NE— A —H 14
Credited to profit or loss (note 12) REZ PR A (FiEE12) (40)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—XRE+=-A=+—H
R=—ZF—+tF—H—H (26)
Translation adjustment BRERE (4)
Credited to profit or loss (note 12) RIEZPE A (FFaE12) (92)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tF+=BA=+—8 (122)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately US$676,000 available for offset
against future profits. Such tax losses have been utilised
for offsetting against the assessable profits of the relevant
subsidiary generated during the year. The Group had no
unused tax losses as at 31 December 2017.

Deferred tax liabilities of approximately US$58,000 (2016:
US$10,000) have not been established for the withholding
taxation that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of a PRC subsidiary as at 31 December 2017 as, in the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
Such unremitted earnings amounted to approximately
US$1,155,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
US$191,000).

—E—tEEH

R-ZB-—RE+=-A=+—B &AEET
AREKERARZNNABARBEELYA
676,000E 7T - ZEBIEEEC AFEKRESR
BB ARERNELENERBER - R=ZF
—tE+ZA=1+—0 AEELELRFGH
FRIBEE o

R-ZE—tF+-A=+—H > —fEHE
MBARZARER EFHEES BN
18 M AR FR M 458,000 T (ZF — R F -
10,000% t) 2 EEFHIBEEE - HEER
% ZMEB AR ET R SR A6 5 Bt Rl
HeRZBE—tF+=-A=+—H 2ZZX
EH 2 F5E41,155,0005E T (ZF— R F
191,000% JT) °
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e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F 128318 LLEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL

26.

The movements in the authorised and issued and fully paid
share capital of the Company during the current and prior

years are summarised as follows:

IR 2

RRBREEUAREBRITRBERARAEF
ERNEFENSBFRBRMLOT :

Number of
Par value ordinary shares Amount
HE ZERROGHA -]
HK$ HK$’ 000
BT TR
Authorised EE
Upon incorporation (note (i) ot AL 2 (M5 (i)) 0.10 3,800,000 380
Share Subdivision (note (iii)) PR A7 47 40 CBft = (i) 34,200,000 =
Increase in authorised share B0SEE B AR (BT EE(iv)
capital (note (iv)) 0.01  3,762,000,000 37,620
At 31 December 2016 R=ZZB—XRE+=H
and 31 December 2017 =+-HRZE—tfF
+=A=+—H 0.01  3,800,000,000 38,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
Issue of shares upon MR LR EITRG
incorporation (note(ii)) (B (i) 0.10 1 =
Share Subdivision (note (iii)) PR A7 47 48 CBft = (i) 9 =
Issue of shares under Share Swap RO BBRIFHRET BT
Agreement (note (v)) B 42 (Bt =£(v)) 0.01 13,314,398 133
Placing (note (vi)) fie & (B =£(vi)) 0.01 400,000,000 4,000
Capitalisation Issue (note (vii)) B AR AL B 4T (&£ (vii)) 0.01  1,186,685,592 11,867
At 31 December 2016 and R=ZZB—ARE+=H
1 January 2017 =t—-BkK
“E-t¥—-HF—H 0.01  1,600,000,000 16,000
Shares issued upon exercise of the RN B 9 BE AR R
options granted by the Company ETEmRTRG
(note (viii)) (B & (viii)) 0.01 8,420,000 84
At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—tF+=H
=t+—-A8 0.01  1,608,420,000 16,084
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
US$’000 US$'000
FER FE
Presented in the financial statements BEmRERAETZ
in US$ 2,073 2,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(vii)

The Company was incorporated on 2 March 2016 with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

Upon incorporation, one share was allotted and issued at par
to the initial subscriber and was subsequently transferred to
Mr. Yung.

On 11 March 2016, each of the issued and unissued shares of the
Company of par value of HK$0.10 each was subdivided into ten
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each (the “Share Subdivision”).
Upon completion of the Share Subdivision, the authorised share
capital of the Company has become HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. The initial one share of the
Company held by Mr. Yung was subdivided into ten shares of
HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 19 September 2016, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$38,000,000
by the creation of an additional 3,762,000,000 new shares.

On 19 September 2016, a share swap agreement (the “Share
Swap Agreement”’) was entered into by the then shareholders
of PFC Device Holdings as vendors and the Company as
purchaser pursuant to which the then shareholders of PFC
Device Holdings shall transfer the entire issued share capital of
PFC Device Holdings to the Company. Pursuant to the Share
Swap Agreement, the Company issued a total of 13,314,398 new
shares at par, totalling HK$133,000 (equivalent to US$17,000) to
the then shareholders of PFC Device Holdings in return for their
interest in the entire issued share capital of PFC Device Holdings.

On 7 October 2016, 400,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the placing price of HK$0.20 per placing share were allotted
and issued (the “Placing”). Among the gross proceeds from
the Placing of HK$80,000,000, HK$4,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$516,000) representing the aggregate par
value of shares issued was credited to share capital whereas the
remaining balance of HK$76,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$9,796,000) was credited to share premium account. The
share issue expenses which amounted to US$1,106,000 were
deducted from share premium account.

Upon completion of the Placing, the issue of 1,186,685,592
ordinary shares of the Company at par to the Company’s
shareholders in proportion to their respective shareholdings by
way of capitalising an amount of approximately HK$11,867,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1,529,000) from the share
premium account of the Company which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 19 September 2016 has become
unconditional (the “Capitalisation Issue”).

—E—tEEH
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26. B (&)

M EE -

(0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

ARAR=ZZB-—R"RF=ZA=-BFEMRIL %
TE MR %380,000/ 7T © 7 #3,800,000/ & IR
0108 T2 EBER °

HEfMRIE  —REROEREERERETT
HERBBA > UABAERETREE -

R-BE-—R"E=ZA+—H ZXLQAEREE
0I0BTHERITRARTROFARTRE
FREE0.01B TR A ([ IF4]) - RIRH
IRHEERE KR ANDEEERAA380,000
7T 0 9 £38,000,0008% & #R0.018 T 2 KR
B o MBABEEREN—RAEAD TR MG IFA
ATRER.01EBTHRY

BEAQXARER=ZZ—"FLATNAAE
B RER - FERE ML E43,762,000,000%
B3 % A 2A T3 E IR A< 380,000 7T (5
#38,000,000R ER0.01B T2 ZER) S
38,000,000 JT °

RZF-—XELABT+HIA HEETHERER
WIRR (ERER)EBARQAT ERER)FT
BHEBRGZ ((ROERGE]) - Bt &g
TR E AR R A A D B EEA AL T
EREMBEBTRA - RERAEBRGZE &
ATEHETHERERNEREZEERT
& $£13,314,3988% 37 IR 19 + #2{5133,0005& 7T
(FBZM17,000%7T) - BB ESEEHEETH
EREDOBITHRARER -

MR=—ZF—xE+H+tH 400,000,0004& A 7]
IR R RS E SRS K 20.2078 T m &
kT (RE]D - REEMESRELE
80,000,000/ T » KREBITROEELRE
24,000,000% 7t (8% R £516,000% 7t) E
TARA - Fl£4282%876,000,00058 7T (AR
#99,796,000% 7T ) e A RDEE IR R AT
EFA1,106,000% 7T » #IRAEEERABR o

RESETRE  BBERATARGEEERS
% %11,867,0005% 7T (18 & R 491,529,000
TT) 0 BLE AL 75 R % B 4 LA B 8 A 2 B IR
RE(TA D F1,186,685,592% R R A + &
ERQATABRER=ZZ—AFENATABHEL
ERABEGE (BT -
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e MIRRINE (8])

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(viii) On 25 August 2017, a total of 8,420,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.01 each were issued as a result of exercise of the
share options granted by the Company (note 28) at an aggregate
consideration of approximately US$178,000. As a result of this,
the share capital of the Company has increased by US$11,000,
an amount of US$81,000 was debited to share option reserve
and the balance of US$248,000 was credited to share premium
account.

27. RESERVES
The Group

The following describes the nature and purpose of reserves
within owner’s equity.

(a) Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued at a premium, less expenses incurred in
connection with the issue of the shares.

(b) Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulated
expenses recognised on granting of share options over
the vesting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4.14.

(c) Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from combining the financial
statements of the companies now comprising the
Group during the reorganisation in connection with the
listing of shares of the Company on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange in 2016.

(d) Capital contribution

Capital contribution as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
amounting to US$1,247,000 arose from the group
reorganisation conducted in 2016 which included
capitalisation of tax recharge by a fellow subsidiary
amounting to US$31,000 and capitalisation of other
balances due to fellow subsidiaries amounting to
US$1,216,000.
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26. R4 (48)

Bi=E © (48)

27.

(viii)

RZBE—tENA=+HA FHITEAXT
% B8 AR 4 (Fff 5228 ) M 2% 17 & ££8,420,000
BREREBEIIBIZZER  BKRKEN
£178,000% jt o B Itk » X 2 7] 9 B < #E o0
11,0005 7T 81,000 T SRR B RIERE
R BR - BR%E248,0003% JTET A RDIREER ©

E]
AEE
EEANRBHEEREHDT :

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

IR AR E T WEL AR S SR R B
BXAT A 1 B R 4D O TE (EURL B AR 4D 31T
mEEWFEXWEHE -

BRERE

BRERFEEEEREHABRIRLE
IR R - WARBMEE4. 1480
B BERER -

aOfRE

EHHEERAEBALABRDREER
FIGEMEmmME=—Z—~FETEA
HEBEEHEAMARAEBRN AT
B IRRELE ©

HE

R-ZE—LtER=-ZE—X"FT+=H
=+—H®HEEAHE1,247,0005= T »
EXfE-ZE—~FETHEREA -
EFERERAERAN —BERRKE
ATz EHBEHEI1,000TRE
BAERNENRZRAKNE QR HEME
825 #1,216,000% T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

27. RESERVES (Continued) 27. f®#E (&)
The Group (Continued) rEE (HF)
(e) Translation reserve (e) EXRG#E
Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange [E & B 1R R 15 M 5141209 & 5T X
difference arising from the translation of the financial K OBRESNEBMBERREEN
statements of foreign operations in accordance with FrEER =5 -

the accounting policy in note 4.12.

(f) Accumulated losses () RstEiE
Accumulated losses are the cumulative net gains and ENEEANERERNETTRER
losses recognised in profit or loss. B8 -
The Company b/ /N
Details of the movements in the Company’s reserves are as RATNRBEEBFHBOT :
follows:
Share Share Accumulated
premium  option reserve losses Total
RA%EE BRERE BB GES
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000
T%n TER %R Txn
Since 2 March 2016 (date of incorporation) BZE-AE=fZH
(MR ILAH)
Loss and total comprehensive THBEEER
income for the period AL - - (2,651) (2,651)
Issued of shares by the Company in return REMAETERBRER
for the shares of a subsidiary during reorganisation A7 & /T IR LR ER
prior to the Listing -BHEAR 2R 13,375 - - 13,375
Issue of shares for ST
~ Placing (note 26(vi)) ~ BV (FE26(vi)) 9,796 - - 9,796
- Capitalisation Issue (note 26(vi) — B4 317 (26 vii)) (1,529) - - (1,529)
Share issuance expenses ROBTER (HEE26(vi) )
(note 26/1i) (1,106) . - (1,106)
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-RE+ZRZ1-BR
1 January 2017 “E-tE-f-H 20,536 - (2,651) 17,885
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFEREANGZER
income for the year - - (656) (656)
Share-based payment Rt - 326 - 326
Vested share options forfeited (note 28) RUCEBHERE
(HizE28) - (9) 9 -
Shares issued upon exercise of the options AARRENERERTER
granted by the Company (note 26(viii)) BT (H=E26(viii)) 248 (81) - 167
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t§+-h=1-H 20,784 236 (3,298) 17,722
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. R X &HE

ARRANGEMENTS

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 19 September 2016, the adoption of the
share option scheme of the Company (the “PFC Device
Option Scheme”) was approved to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards for
their contributions or potential contributions to the Group.
Eligible participants of PFC Device Option Scheme include
the directors, employees, executives or officers of the Group
and any suppliers, consultants, agents, advisers and related
entities to the Group.

The PFC Device Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the
date on which the PFC Device Option Scheme becomes
unconditional. The subscription price shall be such price
as the board of directors of the Company in its absolute
discretion shall determine, provided that such price will
not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets on the date of grant, which must be
a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business
of dealing in securities; (b) the average of the official closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of the share of the Company. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

On 22 March 2017, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 41,794,191 shares of the Company, were granted
under PFC Device Option Scheme to certain directors,
senior management, employees and consultants, which
shall vest based on the vesting schedules specified in
the offer documents of the respective grantees. Share
options granted to non-employee participants are for their
contributions to the Group in respect of providing services
similar to those rendered to its employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 22 March
2017 was HK$3,271,000, equivalent to approximately
US$421,000, of which US$326,000 was charged to profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017. Such fair
value was estimated by independent professional valuer
at the date of grant using the Binomial Model taking into
account the terms and conditions of the options granted.
The following table shows the significant inputs used in the
model:

Dividend yield 0%
Historical volatility 43.032%
Risk-free interest rate 1.636%
Expected life of option 10 years

The historical volatility of a combination of companies of
similar nature was used to estimate the historical volatility of
the Company’s shares.

The movements of the share options granted under PFC
Device Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

28. R =5k (&)

RZE—tF=A-F+_HARHNERELD
F{EA3,271,000%8 7T 8 E 1K 4421,0005%
JT 326,000 X TERBEZE—tF
+TZA=+—HLEFEBZDR - ZAF
ERBYEEGEMNRTE B KA -E
NAENE TG - W5t RIT HBREMRRK
RAGH o TRIITZEXFIEANERE A
=

IS EIE B 0%
JFE S5 % i@ 43.032%
2 5 b F = 1.636%
BE A% A2 78 B 7 AR 106

EERA-AME RN 2 AT B IR ERM
A D E R BB LR R o

RIBPFCERESIRENBRERFRZ
ST :

Numbers of options

BREHE
As at 1 Granted on As at 31
Exercise January 22 March December
Grantee Date of grant price 2017 2017 Exercised Forfeited 2017
i
—E-tF »n
i =2 —B-tF
“E—tF =+=H +=A
ARA Rt A T%® —HA—H & SRk 2Rl =t—H
HK$
BT

Directors
Ex
Mr. Hong 22 March 2017 0.165 - 5,408,343 - - 5,408,343
HEE —E2-tF

=ZA=+=H
Mr. Tang 22 March 2017 0.165 - 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
BEE —E—+tF

=ZA=tZ=H
Other employees 22 March 2017 0.165 - 31,335,848 (8,270,000) (2,960,000) 20,105,848
Hitfg g —E—tF

=ZA=t+Z=H
Consultants 22 March 2017 0.165 - 2,250,000  (150,000) - 2,100,000
R —E-tF

=ZA=tZ=H

- 41,794,191 (8,420,000) (2,960,000) 30,414,191
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. R X+ =8 (&)

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date
of grant of share options was HK$0.172.

The share options granted on 22 March 2017 are valid and effective for
a period of 10 years from date of acceptance on 1 April 2017 subject to
vesting requirements that the options shall be vested by stages which
last for 9 months to 3.25 years.

During the year, options to subscribe for 8,420,000 shares were
exercised which resulted in the issue of 8,420,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company and new capital of HK$84,000 (equivalent to
US$11,000) (note 26(viii)). The weighted average closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately at the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$0.210.

During the year, options to subscribe for 2,960,000 shares were
forfeited upon the resignation of the relevant senior management and
employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, there were 30,414,191 shares issuable
under outstanding share options granted under PFC Device Option
Scheme. The weighted average remaining contractual life of these
options was 9.25 years. Out of the total options outstanding as at 31
December 2017, options to subscribe for 15,980,143 shares vested
and were exercisable by the grantees by giving notice in writing to the
Company. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of additional 30,414,191 shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$304,000 (equivalent to US$39,000).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 22 March 2018, a total
of 206,250 share options were exercised which resulted in the issue
of 206,250 new ordinary shares of the Company and new capital of
HK$2,063 (equivalent to US$264).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
30,207,941 share options outstanding under the PFC Device Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.9% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.
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BZE2017F12A31HLFE

29. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 29. R AT MR T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Notes Us$’000 Us$’000
B & FER ESp
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary E—ENBRAAINKRE 13,392 13,392
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and  HEUWFRIE - ##$
deposits NS EENETCE] 6 24
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B B A B B 7R I8 7,061 =
Cash and bank balances HERIIBITER 624 7,738
7,691 7,762
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b FE TR 18 143 98
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A3 Bt B8 A Bl FRIE 1,145 1,109
1,288 1,207
Net current assets REBEEFH 6,403 6,555
Net assets BEEFE 19,795 19,947
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R HE
Share capital (&N 26 2,073 2,062
Reserves ffE 27 17,722 17,885
Total equity REREE 19,795 19,947
On behalf of the directors RERES
Chow Kai Chiu, David Hong James Man-Fai
JE BB A
Director Director
EE EE
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating leases commitments — The Group as lessee

The Group leases factory, office premises and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangement with leases negotiated
for initial periods ranging from two to four years (2016: one
to two years). The total future minimum lease payments
under these leases are due as follows:

30. EEHEARE

ReHg-FEBEREEA

FEERBELHELZHEETR  PLOE
BEFRRETIRES  AFAPENF-EZNF
Bl (Z2-—AF: —Z2WF) - REZSHE
BIHEMNRRREEENSTBENT

2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RE
uUs$’000 US$’000
FER E
Within one year —F R 279 258
Later than one year and not later —F FRFLUR
than five years 239 19
518 277
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EAXREIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
uUs$’000 US$’000
FER E
Commitments for acquisition of property, plant B E Y% « B E KR E 2 &IE
and equipment
— Contracted for but not provided - BRI N EREE 466 118
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

RE MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

2. ZEREREBRME

(a) MEFHELANEBEYHR

Bank

borrowings

RITHER

Us$’000

FEx

(note 24)

(B zE24)

At 1 January 2017 R-—Z—+t&—HB—H 5,000
Changes from cash flows: RERERENSE :

Proceeds from new bank borrowings LR IT BRI FTESFIE 8,016

Repayment of bank borrowings EIEBITEMR (12,158)

Interest paid 2 FE (14)

Total changes from financing cash flows MERESRES L (4,156)

Other changes: Hih %5 :
Interest expenses (note 10) FEREZ (KMEE10) 14
At 31 December 2017 R-Z2—tH+=A=+-—8H 858

(b) Non-cash transaction

As part of the reorganisation conducted in 2016
for the Listing, PFC Device Holdings issued
7,700,000 preference shares to Shell Electric at a
subscription price of US$1.0 per preference share.
The consideration was settled by capitalising the
amount due by the Group to Shell Electric in the sum
of US$7,700,000. Such transaction was a non-cash
transaction for the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2016.

—E—tEEH

(b) REXRZ

EAR-ZE—AR"FR LmmETEAR
F—3R Eige iRk IR S8 5
177,700,0008% B £ B% » BIRE £ IKRR
BEA1.0ET R ﬂﬁﬁﬁu\ﬁaﬂﬁ**
%ﬁzwtﬁ’ﬁ g T 1 1 HxFEﬁmE=$
7,700,000 THEE - BHEZ-Z —
¢‘|’:HE‘|‘—EIJJ:¢rE’J?.‘mAIE£
MER ZERZAFBEERF -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following significant related party

transactions during the year:

(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following

significant transactions with related parties:

3. BHA RS

BRI B MR A MO EREEN  AEE
HEBIRAFETIUTEARS :

() FAAE[E . A5 g2 B 5B 05 3 17 T L
TEARS :

Transaction amount

REEH
Related party
Name relationship Type of transaction 2017 2016
=1 B T B REEE —E-+tH§ —E-RE
US$’'000 Us$'000
Txx e
Shell Electric (note (i)) Ultimate holding Rental and building 27 27
company management fee charged
by the related party for
office premises
BB (M) BAERAH A 5 R D = R P IR
HEREFERE
SMC Multi-Media Trading Fellow subsidiary Sales of finished goods to 22 13
Company Limited (note (ii)) related party
RRSEREZERDT &) 2 Fff B 1 B o) B Bk T SHE B
(B £ (i)
BLTIEEERELFEEEM Fellow subsidiary Rental and building 144 148
5 PR A 7](Foshan Shunde management fee charged
SMC Multi-Media Products by the related party for
Company Limited* production workshop with
(“Shunde Multi-Media”)) office facilities and staff
(note (ii)) dormitory
HLUTEEERELHEHER BANBEAR HEH S WREEERER
ARAA (B ZHE]) RARBARBIBEN
(Bft (i) HEREFERE
Shunde Multi-Media Fellow subsidiary Fee charged by the related 5 5
(note (ii)) party for provision of
catering services
JE#2 % 1588 (B (ii) EEX - MBS WR M ERREE
AREEEE (RI) Fellow subsidiary Rental charged by the 54 23
BRAF (Xun Su Asset related party for office
Management (Shenzhen) premises
Limited*) (note (iii))
AZREEEE (R ERLF BENBAR HEIRRBRAZEMNES
(B Giii))
EREX (R BRAH Fellow subsidiary Rental charged by the - 38

(Ye Ying Property
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited*) (note (iii))

XBEX (R BRAA
(B Giii))

EEXGIEPNE

related party for office
premises

EEAWEBAZEEMNES

*

for identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@) During the year, the Group entered into the
followings significant transactions with related parties:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Shell Electric is the ultimate holding company of the Group.
Mr. Yung, a non-executive director of the Company, is the
ultimate beneficial owner of Shell Electric.

(i)  SMC Multi-Media Trading Company Limited and Shunde
Multi-Media are indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Shell Electric.

(iii)  Ye Ying Property (Shenzhen) Company Limited and Xun
Su Asset Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited are
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shell Electric.

The transactions were conducted on mutually agreed
terms.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel:

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management were as follows:

RE MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

3. ML XRZ (&)

(a)

(b)

RAFE  AEBEBBLETT N
TEARRS : (&)

B &E -
(i) ERATEENRKERAT o &
T#ﬁﬁ§$ﬂi$%ﬁn% op=d
HREZBEEA-

(i) BRZEREZERIARIERSERE
RETERNBEZENBAF -

(i) EBBECRI)BRATARAREEE
B ORI BRAR IRV TERMOBE
2EMEA R

ZERZRETHE N RIFET

TEEEASHH

ESRHMTEEEEMENFH M
T

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

Us$’000 UsS$’000

FER ESYv

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e  EZHREMER 625 544

Share-based payment expense M52 AFR 139 2
Contributions to defined contribution BREMREMRGTE 2 HE

retirement plan 13 12

777 558

—E—tEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 4. EXEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital and to support the
Group'’s financial stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio, that is, net debt to equity. Net debt includes
borrowings and advances from group companies except for
those which would subsequently be capitalised, less cash
and bank balances. Equity represents total equity of the
Group.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly
review and manage the Group’s capital structure, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements of the
Group, to ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debts or sells assets to
reduce debt.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

FEEEEEFAEERAREARENGEL
LN UARREHEBRRBEMBIEFDE
RRA T ERREERRE  BEEEK
FURIFAEERERER

FEBERBEEBL R (MEKFHREESEN
ER)EEHERRRE - R FHEBER?T
BRREBEATBR (EEREERER
SMBRERRBITHEE - BEEASEAE
TmABEE o

AARANESHBIERHRIREERE
BHNERRE  TEZRAKRENRRERT
R UERNGEHRERRER - AEEREE
EERBEZ2(CUREBREENERSHER
BEARZBAMUBE  BEFIABRELR
B AEEERBORRIANRE - BT
MR ARREEER SEHMERNEER
& o

BREPRNEELEROT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

uUs$’000 US$’000

FEx E

Bank borrowings RITER 858 5,000
Less: cash and bank balances W BERBITER (5,573) (11,170)

Net debt BEFHE N/ATE A N/AT3E A
Total equity BT 24,680 22,220
Gearing ratio &= N/ATiE A N/AT3E A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 34. EXRERE ()
The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio to be in line REBEMEZRREESER VAR HFEE
with expected changes in economic and financial conditions. 28 KEELREKSEEBKE - KEEH
The Group’s overall strategy on capital management NWEREAEERBERAFELETE -

remains unchanged throughout the year.

35. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 5. BEFIEIoMEREERSRA
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY B2HE

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial TRIIFERMEERBENIREE :
assets and liabilities:

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RE
US$’000 US$’000
FEx ESp
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables BXNREKE
— Trade and other receivables -~ EKRE S K& H b fE T IE 6,247 5,015
— Amount due from a fellow subsidiary - ER—ERAKEBE AT
MIE 4 2
— Cash and bank balances —-BHEeRIBTHEER 5,573 11,170
11,824 16,187
Financial liabilities cHasE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEEE AT R 2 ME &
— Trade and other payables -EBNES R EMEMSKIE 3,444 3,899
— Amount due to a fellow subsidiary - BN —ERRAKE A
MIE 56 60
— Bank borrowings —RITIER 858 5,000
4,358 8,959
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

35.

36.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(a) Financial instruments not measured at
fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, bank borrowings
and balances with related companies. Due to their
short-term nature, the carrying values of these
financial instruments except for the non-current bank
borrowings approximate their fair values.

The fair value of the non-current bank borrowings for
disclosure purposes has been determined using a
discounted cash flow model and is classified as level
3 in the fair value hierarchy. Significant inputs include
the discount rate used to reflect the credit risk of the
Group. In the opinion of the directors, the carrying
value of non-current bank borrowings approximates its

fair value.

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair
value
As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group did not
have any financial instruments measured at fair value
and accordingly, no analysis on fair value hierarchy is
presented.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
which comprise market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk). The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the key management under
the policies approved by the board of directors. The Group
does not have written risk management policies. However,
the directors of the Company and senior management meet
regularly to identify and evaluate risks and to formulate
strategies to manage financial risks.
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35. ZBH BT NEMEERETRME

36.

(R

(a)

(b)

= (&)

YHRAFEFENESHIR

THRBRAFEFENERTARER
WEZREEMEBEWRE BERRT
BER - BNEZRAEMEMRIE - R]R1T
BRREBAT G ERAEHM
B BT A (FRIFRBRTERKIN)
ZIREESEAQNFEMBE -

FRB|TERZAFERKERN
MEDRBFRRERAEREAEER
DEBDTFESREBHRBIS - EX
WARBEEAUARRAEEFER
TR E - EERA - FRBDRTE
A2 REEEEAFERES -

BRAVEHITENEMTER

RZE—RER=-ZE—tF+=A
=t+—H AEEWETHWUAFTE
FTEMSRTIAE AW EZAQF
BRI -

Bt B B I

FEEEBERESARMBERR  BETSE
R(BEETERRIZAR  FERBRR
RBETEAR) AEENEREREREEE
RRERT SN AFRRYE  IREAEE
BREAEEMBREMTESNEESNE
g -EREENTEEEERBESSHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Generally, the Group employs a conservative strategy
regarding its financial risk management. As the directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to financial risk is
kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The
most significant risks to which the Group is exposed to are
described below:

(@) Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Taiwan. The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries are mainly US$, RMB and TWD with
certain of their business transactions being settled in
US$, RMB, HK$ and TWD. The Group is thus exposed
to currency risk arising from fluctuations on foreign
currencies, primarily US$, RMB and HK$, against the
functional currency of the Company and the relevant
group entities. Currently the Group does not have
foreign currency hedging policy but the management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group continues to conduct its sales mainly in
US$ and TWD and make payments either in US$,
HK$, RMB or TWD. The directors closely monitor the
volatility of the exchange rates of US$ against RMB
and TWD, to which the Group has major exposure. All
in all, the Group’s risk exposure to foreign exchange
rate fluctuations remains not material.

—E—tEEH

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

36. B ERER (#)

AEE - RFMRT ORI ERESEER o
HREERAAEENHBRABRESERE
KT HAEE YL SR AETHTETBRE
tTEEEHRZ A AEEEHNREEAR
BRI :

(a) E¥E K

E¥EREESMTIAENDFERIKR
BEeERnBRNSERSHIMKIBNE
- ARNAREWBLRANINEER
FERER AREBRHAW 5TH
EXRZUET - AR - BIRHE®E
BE -FHE AEEEHEMN (X2
mEL - ARBREBRL) RAQARE
HEEQANEER ZHEREMmE
ENERRER - ANEE B A E IS
HrhBER HEEREEREEEERA
B THERBFERZEHTEAN
S B o

FEEFEUNETRMABETHE
WAET BT ARBHHEEN
Mo EFHYEEAKEMEHERN
ERAARMRHEENERRE -
MME 2 AREHERRINER
HEEREARKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MK EEERE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Currency risk (Continued) (a) E¥ =B ()

The overall exposure in respect of the carrying
amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
financial assets and liabilities in net position as at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

RABEHR - BEAEEUINES
ENEREERERS (ERFHEKF)
ZIREENRERRMNT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
uUs$’000 US$’000
FEx E
Net monetary assets denominated in LUINEDIE M B #E & = 558
foreign currency
us$ EP 3,723 4,460

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not have
material currency risk arising from fluctuations of
exchange rate between HK$ and US$ and thus the
relevant balances denominated in HK$ or US$ are
excluded from the Group’s net position in the above
table. The following sensitivity analysis, determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout
the year, demonstrates the Group’s exposure to
a reasonably possible change in US$ against the
functional currencies of RMB and TWD on the Group’s
net asset position denominated in US$ as at the end
of the reporting period (in practice, the actual trading
results may differ from the sensitivity analysis below
and the difference could be material):

HRETHETHN  AEEITER
BLAETEXRRHEEERERR
B Bt £ 3R g AR K B S AR R i
RGBT ETIENBEBELEE - U
THRESMERBEINBERNT
7 b 58 B A B A 4 B AR 3 A EE (R
FEHFTE BRASEEHET
AARBRHEKANEELRNEE
AR B ER  HARKERHREH
RAAETINENEEFERINZE
(BERENEL BEREZERTEERH
RUTHRESN > BB RIEZE
BE) :

Increase in profit/Decrease in
loss for the year and decrease
in accumulated losses

AEEBAEN BERBDR

2t EER D
2017 2016
—B-LfF =E-RF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx =TT
US$ appreciated by 5% (2016: 5%) ETHES%
(ZF—RE :5%) 156 184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Currency risk (Continued)

The changes in the exchange rates do not affect
the Group’s other components of equity. The same
percentage depreciation in US$ against the functional
currencies of the respective group companies would
have the same magnitude on the result of the Group
but of opposite effect.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk mainly
arises from bank borrowings and bank deposits.

Bank borrowings arranged at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
All of the Group’s bank borrowings at the end of
the reporting period bore interest at variable rates.
The interest rates and repayment terms of the bank
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 24.

The Group’s bank balances also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuations of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in respect of bank
balances is not significant as interest-bearing bank
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The following sensitivity demonstrates the Group’s
exposure to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates on its floating rate bank borrowings with all other
variables held constant at the end of the reporting
period (in practice, the actual trading results may differ
from the sensitivity analysis below and the difference
could be material):

—E—tEEH

(a)

(b)

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

36. B ERER (#)

B E b ()

EXSHIATLERNEEANEMES
AEED - ETAZEE DRI
ERRERAENBILEEAREE
RELRERENERTE -

A = & b

MNEEBRIREMTANDIFEIR
ERERETSF RS E KB AR o
AEEHNBRARCEEXBREREKR
BTSN REBHTE - XEENR
REBEZRBRTERRBITES

BEEREEZHNRTERD B E
FEEHERERENRABR QT
EFIRERE - REBEHR - REBHFT
BRITEBERRZILGTE - RI|EHR
B ARAE R RAT AR R R R EBERIRR
FA BT EE 244 55 o

AEENRTEKSHEAHRRITE
BREIARTHSMNRRBELENRS
REFNRER - RRAESRAR  £&
ERRITESREZNANRARLE RE
K BARFERITEREEREYR
Ep I

UTHRBRESMBERAEEBEHEREK
THARNFERRITERZANERES
BUgESy MABHMEBEEERT
2 (BREFL BEREZERTUESR
BRUTHREDSH - BEAER KR
=) :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FEMBRERNE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

36. B ERER (F)

(b) FZmE bz (&)

2017
—E—+tF
Us$’000
FEx
(Decrease)/Increase in profit for the year and REEGEF CR L), gk
(increase)/decrease in accumulated losses FFEE gm), mH
+50 basis point (“bp”) +50{E E B ([E 2 ) (4)
—10 bp —101E & 2 1
2016
—E-RF
us$’000
E
(Increase)/Decrease in loss for the year and AEEBERETTEER
accumulated losses (1), w A
+50 bp +50 1R £ & (25)
—10 bp —101E & 25 5

The changes in interest rates do not affect the Group’s
other components of equity. The above sensitivity
analysis is prepared based on the assumption that

NEBHI AL ERNEENEMES
AR o EHBRED M ERRRER
ERRNREERTERRT=MEA
NP BFERIBOREEMRR

bank borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period remain outstanding throughout a
financial year. The assumed changes in interest rate
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions and
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rate over the period until
the next annual reporting period.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FEMBTRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2017F12A31HLFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. B be E 32 (4&)
(Continued)

(c) Credit risk (c) EERB

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting
credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations and from its investing activities.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
rigorously selecting the counterparties and to deal with
creditworthy counterparties. Since the Group trades
only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Credit terms
are granted to new customers after creditworthiness
assessment. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluation on the financial condition of its debtors
and tightly monitors the ageing of the receivable
balances. Follow up action is taken in case of overdue
balances. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables individually
and collectively at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment provision is made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Credit risk on bank balances is mitigated as cash is
deposited in reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
and are considered to have been effective in limiting
the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

—E—tEEH

FERREESRMTIANIZH FREE
REZERTANKRBETERILE
BASRETEERNER - NEBEmY
MEERBITEELANEEEER
BYRAEFETFRERKEREED -

AEEERBBERBERZH FIWER
ERENXZHUFETRE URGIE
ERk ARAKEERERTREE
ERFNE=SR5  HBARHEEK
fim - KBEEFRR - AE@H A
EFRTFEEH AEEBELHER
AW BRRETEERN  BUE
e WA BRI ARES - W BB AR RIR
HUEREITE © bbb - EEERSHREM
RER R EEBTEERENTHRD
T BREFITREHNESETRER
RERERE -

HRBRENDEFEEREERIFIRIT
A RERITEBNEERRE -
AEEEBTFRERR ARBZFHR
RABREAEEIEAZ 2 EERAR
REEEEKF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FEMBRERNE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12A31HLFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain
a prudent liquidity risk management which is to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
as well as to make available of fund through
adequate amounts of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. The liquidity policies have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to
have been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following table below analyses the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rate current at the
end of reporting period) at the earliest date the
Group may be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the bank was to invoke
its unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other
financial liabilities is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

e MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017F12831HLFE

36. B ERER (#)

(d) "RBES R (&)

Total
Within one contractual
year or on One to undiscounted Carrying
demand Two years cash flows amount
R—FRH BRRER
ARER —ZmME HERELET BHE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TERn TER TER SV
As at 31 December 2017 R=B-tH¥+=ZA=+-8
Trade and other payables BHEZREMENTE 3,444 - 3,444 3,444
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FEff —EEZH B2 A FHE 56 - 56 56
Bank loans subject to repayment BREZEREBEFAINBETER
on demand clause 858 - 858 858
4,358 - 4,358 4,358
As at 31 December 2016 R=Z-XFE+=A=+-H
Trade and other payables BNEZREMENTRE 3,899 - 3,899 3,899
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FEff —fEEZH B2 R FE 60 - 60 60
Bank loans RITEN 101 5,020 5,121 5,000
4,060 5,020 9,080 8,959
The following table summaries the maturity analysis of TREBAEESRERETIGARIEST
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause based EF BBERBEENHEER
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan HIEITHREIE R DM c ZE S KA
agreements. The amounts include interest payments FERAEGHRNEZFENRE SR Z
computed using contractual rates. Taking into account ERREBENITBRR  EEREE
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not TAKRAIETHEENSEERLENE
consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise o BERA  ZERTENBIZRER
their discretion to demand immediate repayment. The BRSNS ERBEEE -
directors believe that these bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.
Total contractual
Within one year undiscounted
or on demand cash flows Carrying amount
R-—ERZH BRRER
BEREXR HeRBERE FEE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TER FERT TERT

As at 31 December 2017 R-E-t&+-A=+—H
Bank loans RITER

860 860 858

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Group’s
borrowings were subject to a repayment on demand
clause.

—E—tEEH

RZFB-A"E+ZRA=+t—-H &A&§
B EIAESRFERRRIER
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—tF+A=+t—-HLFE

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of MUTAXREERBEANEGRFENEZEUREERERE
the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted WE DRSZEAFREEZREVBERRRERATNA

from the audited financial statements in this annual BRER
report and the prospectus of the Company, are as

follows:

RESULTS E |

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T-HLHFE

2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—+fF —E-REF —E-FF —E-NF
Us$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEn ET ET =T
Revenue WA 27,617 22,840 18,095 16,221
Profit before income tax P8 %t A A 866 390 1,136 1,739
Income tax expense Fr8BiEAxX (306) (472) (449) (183)
Profit/(Loss) for the year KAREE AER
attributable to owners FEREFN/(FB)
of the Company 560 (82) 687 1,556
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—tH —E-RE —E-AF —E-mEF
Us$’000 US$'000 US$’'000 US$’000
FEx E E E
Total assets MmEE 29,074 31,514 21,588 14,456
Total liabilities HwEE (4,394) (9,294) (16,117) (10,736)
Net assets FEE 24,680 22,220 5,471 3,720
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